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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Shareholders of Jordan Islamic Bank
Public Shareholding Company

Amman - Jordan

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Jordan Islamic Bank (the "Bank") and
its subsidiaries (the "Group"), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2018, and the consolidated income statement, consolidated statement of cther comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity, consolidated statement of cash flows, and consolidated statement
of sources and uses of funds of Al Qard Al Hasan fund for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2018, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Islamic Shari‘a rules and principles as determined by the Shari'a Supervisory
Board of the Bank and in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards as issued by the Accounting and
Auditing Organization for Islamic Financial Institutions (AAOIFI).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Auditing Standards as issued by the Accounting and Auditing
Organization for Islamic Financial Institutions (AAQIFI). Qur responsibilities under those standards, are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Bank in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants' Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) together with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements in Jordan, and we have fuifilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of

the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our

audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not

provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed

the matter provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included
the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed
to address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial

statements.

Expected credit loss of receivables and financing (Deferred sales receivables, ljarah Muntahia Bittamleek
receivables, Al Qard Al Hasan and other receivables), balances and investment accounts at banks and
financial institutions and financial assets at amortized cost.

Disclosures related to the expected credit loss of receivables and financing (Deferred sales receivables, ljarah
Muntahia Bittamleek receivables, Al Qard Al Hasan and other receivables), balances and investment accounts
at banks and financial institutions and financial assets at amortized cost are detailed in notes (2), (5), (6), (7),
(9), (12) and (15) of the consolidated financial statements.

The expected credit loss of customer receivables
and financing (Deferred sales receivables, fjarah
Muntahia Bittamleek receivables, Al Qard Al Hasan
and other receivables), balances and investment
accounts at banks and financial institutions and
financial assets at amortized cost is one of the most
significant matters which affect the results of the
Bank's business; Due to the significance of the
judgments used in classifying receivables and
financing into various stages stipulated in IFRS 9
and determining reiated provision requirements, this
audit area is considered a key audit risk.

Our audit procedures included the assessment of
controls over the granting, booking and monitoring
processes of receivables and financing, and measuring
the expected credit loss including consideration of
Central Bank of Jordan (CBJ) requirements, to validate
the operating effectiveness of the key controls in place,
which identify the expected credit loss of receivables,
financing and financial assets at amortized cost and the
required expected credit loss against them. As part of
the control testing procedures, we assessed whether
the key controls in the above processes were designed,
implemented and operated effectively.
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The Bank appropriates 10% of net revenues from jointly
financed financing, which is then transferred to the
investment risk fund in accordance with Central Bank of
Jordan regulations.

Judgment is applied on the inpuis of impairment
measurement process including the customer's risk of
default, valuation of collaterals and the determination of
the default date, and accordingly calculating the expected
credit loss starting from the date thereof.

In addition, we performed procedures to evaluate the
following:

- Appropriateness of the bank's staging.

- Appropriateness of determining Exposure at
Default, including the consideration of
repayments in the cash flows and the resultant
arithmetical calculations

- Appropriateness of the PD, EAD, LGD and EIR
used for different exposures at different stages.

- Appropriateness and objectivity of the internal
rating.

- Soundness and mathematical integrity of the ECL
Model.

- For exposures moved between stages, we have
checked the appropriateness of the Bank's
determination of significant increase in credit risk
and the resultant basis for classification of
exposures into various stages. We also checked
the timely identification of exposures with a
significant deterioration in credit guality.

- For exposures determined to be individually
impaired we re-preformed the ECL calculation we
also obtained an understanding of the Iatest
developments in the counterparty’s situation of the
latest developments in estimate of future cash
flows, current financial position any rescheduling
or restructuring agreements.

We inspected legal agreements and supporting
documentation to confirm the existence and legal right
to collateral.

We assessed collateral valuation techniques against
the group's valuation guidelines.

We have recalculated the amounts transferred to the
investment risks fund in accordance with Central Bank
of Jordan regulations.

We also assessed whether the consolidated financial
statement disclosures appropriately reflect the
requirements of the Accounting and Auditing
Organization for Islamic Financial Institutions
{AAIOFI),
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Other information included in the Group's 2018 annual report.

Other information consists of the information included in the annual report, other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor's report thereon. Management is responsibte for the other information. The Group's
2018 annual report is expected to be made available to us after the date of the auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsivility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in
accordance with Islamic Shari‘a rules and principles as determined by the Shari'a Supervisory Board of the Bank
and in accordance with the Financial Accounting Standards as issued by the Accounting and Auditing
Organization for Islamic Financial Institutions (AAOIF1), and for such internal control as management determines
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from materia!
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group's or to cease operations,
or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
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Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with the Financial Accounting Standards as issued by the Accounting and Auditing Organization for Islamic
Financial institutions (AAOIFI), will always detect a material misstatement when it exist. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards as issued by the Accounting and Auditing
Organization for Islamic Financial Institutions (AAOCIFI), we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: -

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

» Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Group’s internal control.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management’'s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exist, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However future
events or conditions may cause the Group's to cease to continue as a going concern.
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o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

« Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible
for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period, and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report, unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonable be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Requlatory Requirements

The Group maintains proper books of accounts which are in agreement with the consolidated financial
statements

The partner in charge of the audit resulting in this auditor’'s report was Mohammad Ibrahim Al-Karaki;
license number 882.

Amman - Jordan =y e

6 February 2019




Jordan Islamic Bank - Public Shareholding Company

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
As at 31 December 2018

Statement (A)

Assets

Cash and balances with central banks

Balances at banks and financial institutions

Investment accounts at banks and financial institutions

Deferred sales receivables and other receivables —Net

ljarah Muntahia Bittam{eek assets — Net

Financing - Net

Financial assets at fair value through owner’s equity —
self financed

Financial assets at fair value through joint investment
accounts holders' equity

Financial assets at amortized cost

Investments in associates

Investments in real estate

Al Qard Al Hasan — Net

Property and equipment- Net

Intangible assets

Other assets

Total Assets

Liabilities, Joint Investment Accounts Holders’
Equity, Non-controlling interests and Owner’s
Equity

Liabilities

Due to banks and financial institutions
Customers’ current and on demand accounts
Cash margins

Accounts payable

Other provisions

Income tax provision

Deferred tax liabilities

Other liabilities

Total Liabilities

The accompanying notes from (1) to (70) represent an integral part of these consolidated financial statements and
should be read with them

31 December

31 December

Notes 2018 2017
JD JD

4 876,086,318 1,138,666,950
5 93,915,490 54,124,633
6 17,642,298 21,979,000
7 2,053,781,286 2,021,613,041
8 605,801,762 590,844 435
9 32,703,789 30,980,357
10 10,692,694 10,528,825
11 36,594,760 37,384,155
12 191,673,379 78,108,807
13 8,355,201 8,383,116
14 126,379,861 120,212,403
15 11,725,757 8,997,535
16 83,311,212 78,028,966
18 2,299,136 1,548,078
19 9.679 267 10,217,365

4.160,642,210 4,211,617,666
20 8,241,356 5,012,040
21 1,076,008,070 1,127,717.067
22 45,210,218 47,906,977
23 400,227 812,999
24 13,987,106 6,750,000
25 22,459,373 23,760,966
268 843,026 650,528
27 25,206,770 19,369,671

1,192,356,146

1,231,980,248




Jordan Islamic Bank - Public Sharehoiding Company
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
As at 31 December 2018 Statement (A)

31 December 31 December

Notes 2018 2017
JD JD

Joint investment accounts holders’ equity
Unrestricted investment accounts 28A 2,508,970,280 2,534,9860,630
Investment accounts holders' reserve in subsidiaries

and associates 28B 18,144,902 17,634,860
Fair value reserve 29A 7,111,635 7,683,848
Provision for contingent liabilities 29E 1,042,517 -
Deferred tax liabilities 26A 4,358,744 4,137,456
Total joint investment accounts holders’ equity 2539628078 2,564,416,794
Non-controlling interests 28B 153,866 165,487
Total joint investment accounts holders’ equity

and non-controlling interests 2,539,781,944 2,564,582,281
Investment risk fund 30B 31,654,580 36,350,487
Income tax provision of investment risk fund 30 3,455,761 3,746,032
Equity
Owner’s equity
Paid-in capital 31 180,000,000 180,000,000
Statutory reserve 32 84,018,397 76,471,380
Voluntary reserve 32 38,234,085 30,701,752
General banking risks reserve 32 - 1,000,000
Fair value reserve 29B 1,375,464 1,208,122
Retained earnings 33 89,765,833 85,577,364
Total Owner's Equity 393,393,779 374,958,618
Total Liabilities, Joint Investment Accounts

Holders' Equity, Non-Controlling Interests

and Owner's Equ|ty 4,160.642,210 4‘211,617,666
Accounts Managed for Others:
Restricted investments 55 35,574,317 30,967,389
Al Wakala Bi Al Istithmar (Investments Portfolio) 57 358,148,482 376,477 843

Al Wakala Bi Al Istithmar

M\ >L|/' L/{VZK/L

General Manager ~ Chairman

46,562:499

The accompanying notes from (1) to (70) represent an integral part of these consolidated financial statements and
should be read with them



Jordan Islamic Bank - Public Shareholding Company
Consolidated Income Statement
For the year ended 31 December 2018

Statement (B)

31 31
December December
Notes 2018 2017
JD JD

Deferred sales revenues 34 138,792,646 141,057,074
Financing revenues 35 442,805 433,116
Gain from financial assets at fair value through joint invesiment

accounts holders' equity 36 918,795 995614
Gain from financial assets at amortized cost 37 3,740,043 2.895,290
Dividends from subsidiaries and associates 38 1,252,026 86,760
Revenues from investments in real estate 39 1,511,676 797170
Revenues from leased and ljarah Muntahia Bittamleek assets 40 43,075.593 43,535,584
Revenues from other investments 41 2,024,904 1,429,855
Revenues of joint investment accounts 191,758,488 191,230,463
Net income of subsidiaries 42 2,038,994 2,447,991
Share of profit from investments in associates 602,678 722,110
Total revenues of joint investment accounts 194,400,160 184,400,564
Share of unrestricted investment accounts holders’ 43 (51,628,569) (53,554,642)
Share of investment accounts holders’ from income

of subsidiaries (2,034,088) (2,440,386)
Share of non-controlling interests from income of subsidiaries (4,908) (7,605)
Share of profit from investments in associates (602,678) (722,110)
Share of investment risk fund 30 (19.175849)  (19,123,046)
Bank’s share of the joint investment accounts revenues as

Mudarib and Rab Mal 44 120,954,070 118,552,775
Bank's self-financed revenues 45 25,964 26,213
Bank's share of restricted investments revenues as Mudarib 46 222 187 2,349,375
Bank's share of restricted investments revenues as Wakeel 46 3,276,373 2,473,446
Banking services revenues 47 19,097,286 19.646,690
Foreign currency gain 48 1,567,093 2,035,964
Other income 49 1,907,853 1,886,036
Gross income 147,050,826 _ 146,970,499
Employees expenses 50 (40,818,032) (37,392,734)
Depreciation and amortization 17 (7,453,939) (7,736.280)
Other expenses 51 (22,548,850) (20,652,730)
Expected credit loss —self 15 (300,000) -
Other provisions 52 (525,000) (250,000)
Total expenses  (71,646,821) (66,031,744)
Profit before income tax 75,404,005 80,938,755
Income tax 25 (25,596,078) (26,799,702)
Profit after income tax 49,807,927 54,139,053

JD/Fils JD/Fils
Basic Earnings per Share for the Year 53 0/277 0/301
™ ~SLM [\m{/él/
General Manager Chairman

The accompanying notes from (1) to (70) represent an int

should be réad with them

ral part of these consolidated financial statements and



Jordan Islamic Bank - Public Shareholding Company
Consolidated Statement of Other Comprehensive Income

For the year ended 31 December 2018 Statement (C)
31 31
December December
2018 2017
JD JD
Profit after income tax 49,807,927 54,139,053
Other comprehensive income items, net after tax:
Change in fair value reserve of financial assets — net 167,342 599,803
Total other comprehensive income for the year 49,975,269 54,738,856

The accompanying notes from (1) to (70) represent an integral part of these consolidated financial statements

and should be read with them
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Jordan Islamic Bank - Public Shareholding Company
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 31 December 2018

Statement (E)

Cash flows from Operating Activities

Profit before tax

Adjustments to non-cash items:
Depreciation and amortization

Investment risk fund

Expected credit loss for assets- self

Employees' vacation provision

Employees' end of services provision

Provision of repossessed real estate
Impairment provision of repossessed real estate
Expected credit loss for financial assets
Provisions for contingent liabilities and litigations
Gain on sale of property and equipment

Effect of exchange rate on cash and cash equivalents

Profit before change in assets and liabilities

Change in assets and liabilities

Decrease (increase) in investment accounts at banks and financial

institutions maturing after 3 months

(Increase) decrease in deferred sales receivables and other receivables

Increase in financing

Increase in ljarah Muntahia Bittamieek assets
Increase in Al Qard Al Hasan

Decrease (increase) in other assets

Decrease in customers' current and on demand accounts

Decrease in accounts payable
Decrease in cash margins
Increase in other liabilities

Net change in assets and liabilities

Net cash flows (used in) from operating activities before income tax

Income tax paid
Net cash flows used in operating activities

Cash flows from Investing Activities

Proceeds from sale of financial assets at fair value through owner's

equity - self

Purchase of financial assets at fair value through owner's equity - self
Proceeds from sale of financial assets at fair value through joint

investment accounts holders’ equity

Purchase of financial assets at fair value through joint investment

account holders’ equity

Purchase of financial assets at amortized cost - net
Proceeds from sale of financial assets at amortized cost - net

Proceeds from sale of investiment in associates
Proceeds from sale of real estate investments
Purchase of real estate investments

Proceeds from sale of property and equipment
Purchase of property and equipment

Purchase of intangible assets

Net cash flows used in investing activities

Cash flows from Financing Activities

(Decrease) increase in unrestricted investment accounts holders' equity

Dividends paid

Net cash flow (used in) from financing activities

Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents

Effect of exchange rate on cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

31 December

31 December

Notes 2018 2017
JD JD
75,404,005 80,938,755
7,453,939 7,736,280
(4,986,178) 9,824,158
300,000 -
150,000 250,000
300,000 -
- (3,090)
881,329 271,983
1,632,641 1,818,373
75,000 -
(6,348) (24,453)
(858,242) (1,244 309)
80,246,146 39,567,697
4,266,000 (4,254,000)
(32,168,323) 22,875,468
(1,725,917) (916,331)
(14,957,327) (24,899,896)
(782,959) (1,030,684)
538,098 (781,595)
(51,708,997) (71,617,625)
(412,772) (349,407)
(2,696,759) (12,229)
5,837,054 3,918,825
(83,811,3802) (77,067,374)
(13.565,756) 22,500,323
25 (26,897,671) (28,463,980)
(40,463,427) (5,963,657)
400,000 -
(204,029) (2.061,809)
2,562,815 3,593,432
(3,433,805) (5,128,678)
(122,226,436) (27,439,000)
7,129,224 2,064,200
- 22,295
1,811,479 2,910,734
(7.550,762) (16,673,615)
7,724 28,272
(11,986,236) (13,000,927)
(1,502,383) (654,000)
(134,992,409) (56,339,196)
(24,421,497) 147,666,028
(27,000,000) (22,500,000)
(51,421,497) 125,166,028
(226.877.333) 62,863,175
858,242 1,244,309
54 1,187.779,543 1,123,672,059
54 961,760,452 1,187,779,543

The accompanying notes from (1) to (70) represent an integral part of these consolidated financial statements

and should be read with them
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Consolidated Statement of Sources and Uses of Al Qard Al Hasan Fund

For the year ended 31 December 2018

Statement (F)

Balance at the beginning of the year

Sources of the Fund:

Sources the Bank is authorized to use

Sources from outside the Bank

Total sources of the fund’s assets for the year

Uses of the Fund:

Education

Medical treatment

Marriage

Overdraft accounts

Social advances for the Bank's employees
Total uses for the year

Balance at the end of year

Less: expected credit loss provision — self financed

Balance at the end of year — net

31 December

31 December

2018 2017
JD JD
13,497,535 12,466,851

(11,367,227)
(2,255,054)

(10,852,602)
(1,725,402)

(13,622,281)

(12,578,004)

2,561,155 2,091,502
858,680 988,755
621,980 327,370

7,948,562 7,875,209
2,414,863 2,325,852
14,405,240 13,608,688
14,280,494 13,497,535
(2,554,737) (4,500,000)
11,725,757 8,997,535

The accompanying notes from (1) to (70) represent an integral part of these consolidated financial

statements and should be read with them
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
31 December 2018

(1) General Information

Jordan Islamic Bank (“the Bank’) was established as a Jordanian public sharehoiding company
on 28 November 1978 pursuant to the provisions of the companies taw No. (12) of 1964. Head
office is located in Amman.

The Bank offers banking, financial, and investment services on an interest-free basis in
compliance with the rules and principles of the Islamic Shari'a through its head office, 76
branches and 29 banking offices in the Kingdom as well as its subsidiaries. The Bank's
transactions are governed by the applicable Bank's Law.

Jordan Islamic Bank shares are listed on the Amman Stock Exchange — Jordan.

The consolidated financial statements were authorized for issue by the Bank’s Board of
Directors in their meeting No. (1) held on 6 of Febrauary 2019 and it is subject to the approvai
of the General Assembly and the Centrai Bank of Jordan.

The Bank’s Shari'a Supervisory Board reviewed the consolidated financial statements on its
meeting No. (1/2019) held on 28 January 2019 and issued their annual report thereon.

According to the Bank's articles of association and in compliance with the principles and rules of
the Islamic Shari'a and the general Banks' Laws, the Bank has appointed the Shari'a
Supervisory Board which constitutes of four members according to the shareholder's General
Assembly decision. The opinion of Shari'a Supervisory Board shall be binding to the Bank, and
it is responsible for monitoring the Bank's activities and operations in terms of compliance with
Shari'a principles and is responsible for furnishing a Shari'a opinion on the format of contracts
necessary to undertake the Bank's activities, and issue an annual report for the shareholder's
General Assembly.

(2) Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of preparation of the financial statements:

The accompanying consolidated financial statements of the Bank and its subsidiaries financed
from the Bank's funds and the joint investment funds have been prepared in accordance with
the Financial Accounting Standards issued by the Accounting and Auditing Organization for
Islamic Financial Institutions (AAQIFI), and in conformity with applicable l[aws and regulations of
the Central Bank of Jordan. And in the absence of Financial Accounting Standards issued by
the Accounting and Auditing Organization for Islamic Financial Institutions relating to financial
statements items, the International Financial Reporting Standards and related interpretations
are applied in conformity with the Shari'a standards, pending the promulgation of Islamic
Standards therefor.

The consolidated financial statements are prepared on the historical cost basis except for the
financial assets at the fair value through owner’s equity, the financial assets at the fair value
through the joint investment account holders' equity, financial assets at amortized cost and
investment in real estate held for use.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
31 December 2018

The consolidated financial statements have been presented in Jordanian Dinars (JD) which ‘s
the functional currency of the Bank.

A distinction should be made between owner’s equity and joint investment accounts hoiders’.

Investment risks fund is used to cover the impairment in financing and investments accounts
funded by the unrestricted investments accounts.

The term unrestricted investment accounts, wherever mentioned, refers to joint investment
accounts.

Basis of consolidation of the financial statements:

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statemenis of the Bank and its
subsidiaries financed from the Bank's funds and the joint investment funds and subject to the
Bank's control. Control exists when the Bank has power to govern the financial and operational
policies of subsidiaries in order to obtain benefit from their activities. All intra-company
transactions, balances, revenues and expenses are eliminated.

The financial statements of subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as the Bank,
using consistent accounting policies.

The results of subsidiaries operations are consolidated in the consolidated income statement
from the acquisition date, being the date the Bank obtains control over subsidiaries. The results
of operations for disposed subsidiaries shall be consolidated within the consolidated income
statement until the date of disposal, which is the same date on which the Bank's loses controi
over subsidiaries.

The non-controlling interests represent the portion not owned by the Bank or by the unrestricted
investment accounts of the subsidiaries owner's equity.

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost when the Bank issues separate financial
statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
31 December 2018

The Bank has the following subsidiaries as at 31 December 2018:

Bank's
Paid-in ownership Nature of Country of Acquisition
Company name capital percentage business  incorporation date
JD
Al Omariah Schools Company Ltd. 12,825,000 99.4% Education Amman 1987
Al Samaha Financing and Investment
Company Ltd. 12,000,000 100% Financing Amman 1998
Future Applied Computer Technology
Company Ltd. 5,000,000 100% Services Amman 1998
Sanabel Al-Khair for Financial
Investments Company Ltd. 5,000,000 100% Brokerage Amman 2005

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements are
consistent with those followed in the preparation of the Bank's consoclidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2017, except for the adoption of the following new standards
effective as of 1 January 2018:

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

In conformity with Central Bank of Jordan regulation No. (13/2018) dated 6 June 2018
regarding the application of IFRS (9) for Islamic Banks, the expected credit loss is to be
applied. The remaining aspects are subject to the requirements of Islamic Accounting Standard
No. (25) until the issuance of the Islamic Accounting Standard No. (30).

The Bank has adopted IFRS (9) (2014) Financial Instruments on the required effective date 1st
January 2018, the date on which the Bank has assessed the requirements of the new expected
credit loss impairment model, hedge accounting, and the revised guidance on the classification
and measurement requirements of financial instruments. The Bank had previously implemented
the first phase of IFRS (9) (classification and measurement) as issued during 2009, The date of
initial implementation of the first phase of IFRS (9) was 1 January 2011, by implementing the
Islamic Accounting Standard No.{25) — Investments in Sukuk, Shares and Similar Instruments.

The standard has been applied retrospectively and in line with IFRS (9) (Financial Instruments),
comparative amounts have not been restated. The impact of the adoption of standerd was
recognised on 1 January 2018 by reversing the impact on in retained earnings on the equity
statement only for the bank’s own funds.The standard eliminates the use of |IAS (39) incurred
loss impairment model approach, uses the revised hedge accounting framework, and the
revised guidance on the classification and measurement requirements.
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1. Qualitative disclosures

Definition of default and management measures:

The existence of an outstanding customer receivable for 90 days or more, customers with clear
indicating factors towards default or bankruptcy, a late payment exceeding 90 days or more of
profit and or principals by the issuer of the financial asset, banks in which our bank holds
exposures at defaults.

The Bank monitors the outstanding receivables and collection occurs through the specified
departments, each according to its practice. The Bank analyzes the reason for default and
review the cash flows of the customers, and if necessary restructures or reschedules customer
installments. Finally, The Bank will seek necessary legal action through a court to collect
outstanding receivables.

Internal credit rating system :

The Bank owns an internal credit rating system, to raise the quality of the facilities granting
process, the customer creditworthiness rating depends on the qualitative operating and
quantitative financial criteria presented.

Purpose of the internal credit rating system:

- Improving the decision of granting facilities through the reliance of the internai credit rating
system.

- Calculating the customers probability of default (PD).

- Matching facility pricing to risk of exposure.

- Measuring the credit risk at customer and portfolio level.

- Improve portfolio credit through setting limits on facilities according to the internal credit
rating.

- Monitor portfolio through the internal credit rating system.

Internal credit rating system mechanism:

- The classification process occurs with obtaining the customers principal data such as
financial statements and qualitative information.

- Ensuring at least an annual update of customer data and quarterly update of customer
facilities granted.

Expected credit loss (ECL) calculation for financial instruments:

The reliance of the international credit rating agencies classification was used to calculate the
financial instruments probability of default. Expected credit loss was calculated based on the
markets best practice, as the geographical distribution, economic sector and capital structure of
the issuer for the financial instrument is considered in the calculation .



Jordan Islamic Bank - Public Shareholding Company
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The governance of IFRS 9 implementation:

1. Board of Directors responsibilities

Accepting of the methodology for applying the standard .

Adopting a business model in which the objectives and bases of acquisition and
classification of financial instruments are defined.

Ensuring the existence and application of effective internal control systems through
which the roles of the relevant parties are determined .

Ensure the availability of infrastructure (such as human resource systems) to
guarantee the implementation of the standard .

2. Executive Management responsibilities

Preparation of the methodology for applying the standard in accordance with the
requirements of the regulatory bodies .

Preparation of the business model according to the Bank's strategic plan .

Ensure adherence to the approved methodology for applying the standard .
Supervision over the systems used in applying the standard.

Monitor the expected credit losses and ensure adequacy of provisions.

Preparing the required reports for related parties.

Definition, calculation and monitoring Probability of Default (PD), Exposure At Default
(EAD) and Loss Given Default {(LGD):

1.  Probability of Default (PD) calculation:

Probability of defauit (PD): The percentage of probability that the customer will default
or fail on installment payments or obligations as they fall due within the next 12
months.

The probability of default for the individual portfolio is calculated according to the
guantitative and qualitative data of the customers generated by the internal rating
system or by the external credit rating agencies.

The probability of default (PD) for the collective portfolio is calculated according to the
analysis of the historical data customer and its correlation with the economic variables.

2. Exposure At Default (EAD) calculation:

The total amount the Bank is exposed to at the time of default.

Basis of contractuat cash flows and facility maturity dates.

The expected cash flows of financial instruments such as Sukuk.

The value of contingent liabilities is determined by the maturity date without the
application of the Credit Conversion Factor (CCF).
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3. Loss Given Default (LGD) calculation:

- Loss Given default (LGD): is the amount of expected loss if the customer fails to
repay.

- The Loss Given Default was calculated by considering the amount of collateral in lieu
of facilities granted, reduced by specified rates set by Central Bank of Jordan in
accordance with instructions No. (47/2009) for the calculation of impairment provision
and general bank risk reserve.

Factors for significant changes in credit risk for calculating the expected credit losses:

The significant increase in credit risk is determined by comparing the current customer rating
with the rating on the grant date using relative staging rules, which determines the number of
degrees of decline required for classifying the accounts under Stage 2 or 3 at the date of initial

granting.

Policy for identifying the common elements on which the credit risk and expected credit
loss are measured on a collective basis.

Common elements were determined based on the historical analysis with economic factors and

specifications of the customers and then taking the elements that have significant impact of
default.

Key Economic factors used in the calculation of the Expected Credit Loss (ECL):

Indicators vary according to the portfolio type the specific characteristics of the customers in the
porifolio.

Used scenarios:

Based on the Gross Nominal Product and Amman Stock exchange, three scenarios were
assumed for calculating expected credit losses:

Scenario Weighting
Scenario with high economic growth 30%
Basic scenario 40%
Scenario with low economic growth 30%
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2. Quantitative disclosures

The impact of {IFRS 9 application on beginning balance retained earnings as at 1 January 2018

were as follows:

Cash and balances with Central Banks

Balances at banks and financial institutions

Investment accounts at banks and financial
institutions

Deferred sales receivahles and other
receivables — Net

ljarah Muntahia Bittamleek assets — Net

Financing — Net

Financial assets at fair value through
owner's equity — Self financed

Financial assets at fair value through
investment accounts holder’s equity — joint

Financial assets at amortized cost

Investments in subsidiaries ang associates

Investment in real estate

Al Qard Al Hasan — Net

Property ang equipment — Net

Intangible assets

Other assets

Guarantees

Unutilized Limits — Self

Unutilized Limits — Joint

Utilized Letter of Credits - Self

Utilized Letter of Credits — Joint

Balance as
Amount of 1 January Effected
as of 31 2018 after Reclassification  financial
December Reclassified Expected the Application Effect of position
2017 amount Credit Loss of IFRS (9) application items
JO JD JD JD JD
1,138,666,950 - - 1,138.666,350 - -
54,124,633 (39,284) 54,085,349 - -
21,879,600 - (158,204) 21,820,796 - -
2,021,613,041 - (7,333,096) 2,014,279,945 - -
590,844,435 - 590,844,435 - -
30,980,357 - (403.855) 30,576,402 - -
10,528,825 - 10,528.825 - -
37,384,155 (14,975,071) - 22,409,084 -
78,108.807 14,974,007 (2.309.576) 90,773,238 (2.309,576)
8,383,116 - 8.383.116 - -
120,212,403 N 120,212,403 - -
8,997,535 - 2,297,083 11,294,618
78,028,966 78,028,966 -
1,548,078 - - 1,548,078 - -
10.217.385 - - 10,217,365 - -
110,757,863 (5.318.270) 110,757,863 - -
77.137.026 - (1.428.968) 77,137,026 - -
115,786.180 (555,682) 115,786,180 - -
28,773.584 (50.669) 28,773,584 - -
16,375,488 - (28,233) 16.375,488 -
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The opening balance of provisions after application of IFRS 9 is as follows:

Balance in
Current Recalculation  accordance
Provision difference with [IFRS 9
JD JD JD
Cash and balances with Central Banks - - -
Balances and accounts at banks
and financial institutions - (197,488) (197,488)
Deferred sales receivables and financing (76,304,746) (7,737,051)  (84,041,797)
Financial assets at amortized cost (1,818,373) (2,309,576) (4,127,949)
Al Qard Al Hasan (4,500,000) 2,297,083 (2,202,917)
Guarantees - (5,318,270) (5,318,270)
Letter of Credits - (76,902) (76,902)
Unutilized Limits (self and joint) - (1,984 ,650) (1,984,650)

Effect of application of IFRS 9 on retained earnings :

Effect on

retained

earnings

JD

Retained earnings as of 31 December 2017 85,577,364
General banking risk reserve 1,000,000
Effect of IFRS (9) adoption (4,540,108)
Balance at the beginning of the year (Adjusted) 82,037,256
Profit after income tax 49,807,927
Transrerred to reserves (15,079,350)
Dividends (27,000,000)
Balance at end of the year 89,765,833

Segment Information:

Business segment represents a group of assets and operations of the Bank that are engaged
together in providing products or services that are subject to risks and rewards different from
those related to other business sectors, and are measured in accordance with the reports used
by the General Manager and operating decision maker of the Bank.

Geographical segments are associated to products and services in a specific economic
environment subject to risks and rewards different from those sectors operating in other
economic environments.



Jordan Islamic Bank - Public Shareholding Company
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
31 December 2018

Basis of distributing joint investments profit between owner's equity, unrestricted
investment accounts holders’ , restricted investments accounts holders' and Wakalah Bi
Al Istithmar accounts holders’ (Investment portfolio):

10 % shall be distributed to the investment risks fund pursuant to Article (55) of the Jordanian
Banks Law (2017: 10 %).

The Bank’s share as Mudarib was allocated at 45% for Jordanian Dinars and 50% for foreign
currencies total joint investments profit (2017: 44.3 % for Jordanian Dinars, 50 % for foreign
currencies.)

The remaining balance is distributed between the unrestricted investment accounts and the
Bank’s invested funds, each according to its percentage of contribution, taking into
consideration that the priority for funds investment relates to the unrestricted investment
accounts holders’.

The Bank waived a portion of its share as Mudarib and/or Rab Mal, to improve the overall share
of profits distributed to all/some of the joint investments account holders’.

Joint investment accounts share in the results of the investment earnings which are distributed
to all investors each by its percentage of participation and conditions of the account agreement
signed the Bank and the investor.

Joint investment accounts participate in the profit as follows:

- 40% of the annual average balance of saving accounts.
- 70% of the annual average balance of notice accounts.
- 90% of the minimum balance of term deposit accounts.

The Bank bears all administrative expenses except for the insurance expense of ljarah
Muntahia Bittamleek assets which are allocated to the joint investment accounts profit.

The Bank's fees as agent (Wakeel) was deducted at a rate of 0.36% instead of 1.5% of the Al
Wakala Bi Al Istithmar account’s capital (Investment Portfolio) as at 30 June 2018, and at the
rate of 1.3% instead of 1.5% as at 31 December 2018. The general percentage of profits
distributed to the Al Wakala Bi Al Istithmar accounts (Investment Portfolio) holders’ was 3.67%
as at 30 June 2018 and 4% as at 31 December 2018.

Profit was distributed to Al Wakala Bi Al Istithmar (Investment Portfolio) accounts holders' after
deducting the Bank's fees as agent (Wakeel).

The Bank waived a portion of its share as a Mudarib/ fund owner (Rab Mal) to improve the
overall profit rate distributed amongst some joint investment accounts holders’, approximately
amounting to JD 2 million.
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The Bank waived a portion of its share as agent (Wakeel) and its share in the annual net profit
increase of 3.5% after deducting the income tax on dividends distributed under the prospectus
on 31 December 2018 to improve the overall share of profits distributed to all of the Al Wakala
Bi Al Istithmar account holders' (Investments Portfolios), approximately amounting to JD 2.7
million and to some of the Al Wakala Bi Al Istithmar account holders’ (Investments Portfolios)
approximately amounting to JD 466 thousand.

Restricted investment accounts are managed through Mudaraba contracts.

Bank's share as Mudarib was deducted at rates between 7.7% to 25% of restricted investment
accounts in Jordanian Dinars profit and at a rate of 40% of restricted investment accounts’ in
foreign currencies profit. Additionally, general profit rate distributed to restricted investment
accounts in Jordanian Dinars was 2% and foreign currencies restricted investments accounts
was 0.9% as at 31 December 2018 (2017: 2% and 0.6% respectively).

Profit was distributed after deducting the Bank's share as Mudarib on the restricted investment
accounts each according to its contribution percentage.

Shari’a non-compliant revenues, gains, expenses and losses:

The Bank recognize these amounts in a separate account within the other liabilities and shall be
distributed to charitable activities as determined by the Shari'a Supervisory Board.

Zakah:

The responsibility of Zakah payment rests on the shareholders, unrestricted and restricted
investment accounts holders’ and participants in Al Wakala Bi Al Istithmar (Investments
Portfolio) upon the fulfiiment of Zakah required conditions.

Deferred sales receivables:

1- Murabaha Contracts:

Murabaha: is selling a commodity for the same purchase price plus an agreed predetermined
profit margin computed based on a percentage of the price or fixed amount, and it represent
one of Boy'ou Amanah types that depends on disclosing the purchase price or cost.

Murabaha to the purchase orderer: is the transaction whereby the Bank sells a commodity to its
customer (purchase orderer) with a markup on its purchase price (or cost) after identifying that
increment (Murabaha profit). It's also called Banking Murabaha.

The Bank applies the commitment to the promise principle in Murabaha to the purchase
orderers contracts in accordance with the standards issued by Accounting and Auditing
Organization for Islamic Financial Institutions.
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Deferred sales profit (by which the buyer will pay a lump sum price that matures at a future date
or instalments paid at various subsequent dates) is recognized through the proportional
allocation of this profit to the future financial periods until the maturity date of the contract,
regardless whether the payment is settled or not.

Deferred sales receivables are recognized when the transaction takes pilace at its face value,
and are measured at the end of the financial period on the basis of the net realizable expected
cash value, which is the amounts owed by custmers at the end of the financial period less
expected credit loss.

2- Istisna'a contracts:

Istisna’a: is a sale contract between Al-Mustasni’ (the buyer) and Al-Sani’ (the seller) whereby
Al-Sani' based on the order of Al-Mustasni' under takes to have manufactured or otherwise
acquire a prescribed commodity (Al- Masnoo’) upon delivery in return for an agreed upon price
and method of seftlement, whether at the time of contracting, by instalments or deferred to
specific future time. It's a condition that Al- Sani' provide the material and/or labor of Al -
Masnoo'.

Parallel Istisna’a: is conducting two separate contracts, one with the customer in which the
Bank represents Al-Sani' and the other with Al-Sani' (contractor) in which the Bank represent Al-
Mustasni’. Profit is achieved through the price difference in the two contracts, in most cases one
contract is immediately effective (with Al-Sani') and the second is deferred (with the customer).

Istisna'a costs include direct and indirect costs of the Istisna'a activities that can be allocated on
objective basis for certain contracts. General and administrative expenses, marketing expenses,
and research and development costs shall not be included in Istisna'a costs.

Istisna'a costs incurred during the financial period, as well as pre-contract costs shall be
recognized in Istisna'a in progress account in (Istisna'a) or in Istisna’a cost account (in Parallel
Istisna’a).

In cases where Al-Mustasni’ (the buyer) fails to settle the agreed upon price in full and agree to
make repayment through instalments during the execution of the contract or after the
completion of the contract, deferred profit shall be recognized and offset against [stisna'a
receivables balance in the Bank's statement of financial position. This treatment shall be applied
whether the percentage of completion method or completed contract method is used in
recognising Istisna'a revenues. Deferred profit recognized shall be allocated over the future
financial periods whereby each financial period shall carry its portion of profit irrespective of
whether cash is received or not.
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Istisna'a contracts are presented in the total amounts paid by the Bank since contract inception,
while parallel stisna'a contracts are presented in the net contractual value. impairment provision
is calculated as expected credit loss with forward looking charactaristics in relation to obligors
and financial environment.

Any additional costs paid by the Bank in Parallel Istisna'a as a resuit of breaching the
contractual obligations are recognized as losses in the consolidated income statement and shall
not be recognized in the calculation of the Istisna‘a costs account.

In case the bank retains Al- Masnoc’, the asset is measured at the lower of expected realizable
cash value or cost. Any difference between these values shall be recognized in consolidated
income statement for period in which it was occurred.

Assets available for deferred sale:

This item represent assets acquired by the Bank for the purpose of selling these assets on a
deferred basis (instalments). This type of selling assets is also called instalment-bargain sale to
distinguish it from Murabaha to the purchase orderer.

At contract inception, the assets available for deferred sale shall be recognized and measured
at cost (purchase price and any direct expenses related to acquisition of the assets).

Assets available for deferred sales shall be revaluated at fair value at the end of the financial
period, the change in the value, if any shall be measured as the difference between the book
value and the fair value. Unrealized profits (losses) shall be recognized in the fair value reserve
account.

Profits of the deferred sales shall be recognized on an accrual basis and proportionally allocated
over the period of the contract. Profits related to future financial periods shall be recognized in
deferred sales profit account.

Deferred sales receivables shall be recognized at contract inception and measured at their face
value (contracted value).

Musharaka financing: is providing funds by the bank and its clients whereby each party
contributes funds in equal or varying degrees to establish a new project or share in an existing
one, whereby each of the parties becomes an owner of the capital on a permanent or declining
basis and shall have its due share of profits. Losses are allocated to each party in proportion of
its contributed capital and it is not permissible to stipulate otherwise. Musharka is divided into
Constant Musharaka and Diminishing Musharaka Muntahia Bittamleek.

Bank's share in Musharaka capital is recognized when it is paid to the managing partner or
made available in the Musharaka account and is measured at the amounts paid (monetary) or
at fair value (non-monetary). Any difference in the fair value of the non-monetary item and its
book value at the time of contracting shall be recognized as profit or loss.

12
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Bank's share in the Constant Musharaka capital shall be measured at the end of the financial
period at historical cost. Bank's share in Diminishing Musharaka capital shall be measured at
the end of a financial period at historical cost net of the historical cost of any share sold at
agreed upon fair value. Differences between these values shall be recognized as profit or loss in
the consolidated income statement.

Bank’s profit or loss share in Musharaka financing transactions initiated and ended during the
financial period is recognized after liquidation. However, if Musharaka continues for more than
one financial period, Bank's share of profits is recognized upon realization through partial or full
settlement between the Bank and the partner for that period to the extent profits are being
distributed; Bank's share of losses for a financial period shall be recognized in its accounts for
that period to the extent such losses are being deducted from Bank's share of the Musharaka
capital.

Losses incurred due to the partner's misconduct or negligence is borne by the partner and shall
be recognized as receivables.

At the end of the financial period, the financed assets shall be recognized at the lower of the
cost or expected realizable cash value, and the difference shall be recognized as financing
impairment provision.

Non-performing deferred sales profit shall be suspended in accordance with Central Bank of
Jordan regulations.

Deferred sales receivables and finances funded by unrestricted investment accounts are
written-off in case of unsuccessful collection procedures within the investment risk fund account
(except for receivables granted/financed and written-off during the same year which is charged
to investment revenues account within the consolidated financial statements). Collected
amounts from receivables/finances previously written-off are added to the investment risk fund
(except for amounts charged to the investment revenues within the consolidated income
statement).

Deferred sale receivables and facilities funded by the bank’s self funds whereby an expected
credit loss is allocated to, shall be written-off through deduction from the provision in case of
unsuccessful collection procedures. Any surplus in the gross provision, if any shall be
transferred to the consolidated income statement, and the amounts collected from previously
written off receivables/facilities shall be added to revenues.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss:
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, are those purchased with the intent to resell
in the near future to generate gains as a result of changes in market prices of such investments.



Jordan Islamic Bank - Public Shareholding Company
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
31 December 2018

They are initially recognized at the fair value of consideration given (transaction costs are
recorded in the consolidated income statement) and subsequently re-measured at fair value. All
realized and unrealized gains or losses are transferred to the consolidated income statement
including any gains or losses resulting from the translation of such assets held in foreign
currencies to the functional currency.

Profits realized and dividends received are recorded in the consolidated income statement.

Financial assets at fair value through owner’s equity- self financed:
These assets represent investments in equity instruments funded by the Bank's seif funds in
order to hold them in the long term.

These assets are initially recognized at fair value plus acquisition expenses, and subsequently
measured at fair value. The change in fair value is presented in the fair value reserve within
owner's equity.

Gains and losses resulting from the sale of these assets is recognized within the retained
earnings in accordance with Central Bank of Jordan regulations.

Any impairment loss in the value of these assets shall be recognized within the consolidated
income statement.

Impairment losses previously recognized in the consolidated income statement can be retrieved
if it is objectively evidenced that the increase in the fair value occurred in the period subsequent
to the recording of impairment losses through the fair value reserve within the shareholders’
equity.

Gains derived from these financial assets is recognized within the consolidated income
statement at the date of distribution.

Gains and losses resulting from foreign currency translation differences for these assets are
recognized within the fair value reserve.

Financial assets which fair value cannot be determined reliably are stated at cost, and tested for
impairment at the end of each financial period and any impairment is recognized in the
consolidated income statement, and cannot be retrieved in subsequent periods.

Financial assets at fair value through joint investment account holders’ equity:
These assets represent investments in equity instruments and funded by joint investments
accounts in order to hold them in the long term.

These assets are initially recognized at fair value plus acquisition expenses, and subsequently
measured at fair value. The change in fair value is presented in the fair value reserve within joint
investment account holders’ eguity.
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Gains and losses resulting from the sale of these assets and impairment losses is recognized
within the consolidated income statement including amounts previously recognized in joint
investments accounts holders’ equity.

The impairment losses previously recognized in the consolidated income statement can be
retrieved if it is objectively evidenced that the increase in the fair value occurred in the period
subsequent to the recording of impairment losses through the fair value reserve within the joint
investment accounts.

Gains derived from these financial assets is recognized within the consolidated income
statement at the date of distribution.

Gains and losses resulting from foreign currency translation differences for these assets are
recognized within the fair value reserve.

Financial assets which fair value cannot be determined reliably are stated at cost, and tested for
impairment at the end of each financial period and any impairment is recognized in the
consolidated income statement, and cannot be retrieved in subsequent periods.

Financial assets at amortized cost:

This item represent financial assets invested based on contractual cash flows and is not held for
trading or recognized as financial assets at fair value through income statement. Cash flows
constituting of variable or constant return on the outstanding principal amount and profit.

These instruments are initially measured at cost plus acquisition expenses.

These assets are measured using the effective profit method at the end of financial period. All
gains and losses arising from amortization process are recognized in the consolidated income
statement.

Financial assets at amortized cost book value are reduced by the expected credit loss and are
recognized within the consolidated income statement (in case the investment is self-financed)
and within investment risk fund (in case the investment is jointly financed).

Investments in associates:

An associate is an entity in which the Bank has significant influence over its financial and
operating policies and is not controlled by the Bank, where the Bank hold a rate between 20% to
50% of the voting rights.

The Bank's investment in associates is accounted for using the equity method of accounting.

'n case of preparing the Bank's separate financial statements, the investment in associates is
presented at fair value.
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ljarah and ljarah Muntahia Bittamleek:
ljarah is the transfer of ownership of the right to benefit of using an asset for a consideration and
is divided into:

Operating ljarah: is ljarah contract that do not end up with the transfer of ownership of leased
assets to the lessee.

ljarah Muntahia Bittamleek: is {jarah contract that end up with the transfer of ownership of the
leased assets to the lessee and might take more than one form in accordance with the Financial
Accounting Standard issued by the Accounting and Auditing Organization for Islamic Financial
Institutions.

Assets acquired for ljarah shall be recognized upon acquisition at historical cost including all
expenditures necessary to bring the asset to its intended use. Leased assets are depreciated
according to the depreciation policy used by the Bank.

When the recoverable amount from assets acquired for ljarah is lower than its carrying amount,
the assets are written down to its recoverable amount, and an impairment is recognized in the
consolidated income statement.

ljarah revenues shall be allocated proportionately to the financial periods of the Ijarah contract.
Maintenance expenses incurred in relation to the leased assets are recognized when incurred.

Investments in real estate:
This item represent a property held to earn pericdical income or for capital appreciation or both.

investments in real estate held for use shall be recognized either at cost model or at fair value
model.

Investments in real estate "held for use” are recorded at cost in accordance with the cost model
less the accumulated depreciation and any impairment provision. Fair value is measured for
investments in real estate “held for use” under fair value model, any unrealized gains arising
from the change in the fair vaiue of investment in real estate shall be recognized in the fair value
reserve.

Any unrealized losses resulting from the revaiuation of the fair value of investments in real
estate carried using fair value model shall be recognized in the fair value reserve, to the extent
of the available balance of this reserve. In case such losses exceed the available balance, the
unrealized losses shall be recognized in the consolidated income statement.
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In cases where unrealized losses has been recognized in previous financial periods and
unrealized gains were achieved during subsequent periods, unrealized gains shall be
recognized in the consolidated income statement to the extent of previously recognized losses
in the consolidated income statement, any surplus shall be recognized in the fair value reserve.

The realized profits or losses resulting from the sale of any investment in real estate shall be
measured at the difference between the book value and net proceeds from the sale. The
resulting profit or loss together with any related available balance in the fair value reserve shall
be recognized in the in the consolidated income statement.

If either the cost model or the fair value mode is used, the model shall be applied to all
investments in real estate.

Investments in real estate “held for sale” shall be carried at the lower of its carrying value or fair
value less costs to sell, and any adjustments differences shall be recognized in the consolidated
income statement. Investments in real estate “held for sale” are not depreciated.

Investments in real estate shall be classified as "held for sale” if they are expected to be sold
within 12 months from the acquisition date. If the investments were not sold within this period, it
shall be reclassified as mentioned above.

The Bank recognizes all its investments in real estate “held-for-use” in accordance with the fair
value model.

Joint investment risks fund:

The Bank appropriates at least 10% of the joint investments profit achieved during the period,
this percentage increases based on the Central Bank of Jordan regulations, the amended
percentage is applicable at beginning of the subsequent year. The balance of investment risk
fund revolves to Zakah fund after covering all expenses and losses for which the fund was
established for. Thus, the investors do not have any rights in the amounts deducted and
accumulated in the investment risk fund, as these amounts are allocated to cover the losses of
the joint investment operations.

Losses incurred in joint investment operations that were initiated and ended during the same
year will be covered from the profits of other joint investment operations of the same year, if
losses exceeded profits in the same year, they will be covered from the investmert risk fund.

If joint investment operations were initiated and continued from preceding years, and the results
of these investment operations were determined in a specific year to be losses, such losses
shall be covered from the investment risks fund.
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Fair value of financial assets:

Closing prices (purchasing assets/selling liabilities) on the date of consolidated financial
statements in active markets represents the fair value of quoted financial instruments. In the
absence of quoted prices or when there is no active market, fair value is normally based on
comparison with the current market value of a highly similar financial instruments.

When the fair value of an investment cannot be reliably measured, it is stated at cost after the
writing down any impairment.

Fair value of non-financial assets measured at fair value:

Market prices represent the fair value for non-financial assets at the date of consolidated
financial statements (when active markets of such assets are available). In cases where market
prices are not available, they are assessed by taking average value of three assessments of
experienced and certified parties.

Depreciation:

A- Depreciation of assets available for investment

Assets available for investment shall be depreciated in accordance with the Bank's adopted
policy for the investment in these assets. These assets shall be depreciated over its useful life
using straight-line basis.

B- Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment. Depreciation is calculated (except for lands) using the straight-line method over
their estimated useful lives when property and equipment are ready for use

Item Depreciation rate
Buildings 2%
Equipment, furniture and fixtures 5%-20%
Vehicles 15%
Computers 35%

The useful lives of property and eguipment are reviewed annually. If expected useful lives vary
from the estimated ones; the change in estimate is adjusted prospectively.
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The carrying values of property and equipment are reviewed for impairment when events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying values may not be recoverable. If any such
indication exists and where the carrying values exceed the estimated recoverable amounts, the
assets are written down to their recoverable amount, and the impairment is recorded in the
consolidated income statement.

Intangible assets:

Intangible assets are classified based on the assessment of their useful lives to definite and
indefinite. Intangible assets with definite lives are amortized over the useful economic life, and
amortization is recognized in the consolidated income statement, while intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives are assessed for impairment at the date of consolidated financial
statements and any impairment in their value is recorded in the consolidated income statement,

Intangible assets arising from the Bank's operations are not capitalized and are recorded in the
consolidated income statement for the same year.

Any indications of impairment of intangible assets are reviewed at the date of consolidated
financial statements; in addition, the useful lives of these assets are reviewed annually. If
expected useful lives vary from the estimated ones; the change in estimate is adjusted
prospectively.

[tem Amortization rate
Software 50%

Repossessed assets by the bank against debts:
Repossessed assets are presented in the consolidated statement of financial position within
investments in real estate at fair value.

Provisions:

Provisions are recognized when the Bank has a present obligation (legal or constructive) at the
date of the consolidated financial statements arising from a past event and the costs to settle
the obligation are both probable and able to be reliably measured.

- End of service indemnity provision

End of service indemnity provision shall be calculated pursuant to the provisions of the labor
law and the Bank’s bylaws.

- Employees’ vacation provision

Employees’ vacation provision shall be calculated pursuant to the Bank's bylaws, and shall
be calculated in accordance with the accrual basis.
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Income tax:
Tax expense comprises current taxes and deferred taxes.

Current tax is calculated based on taxable profits, which may differ from accounting profits
published in the consolidated financial statements. Accounting profits may include non-taxable
profits or non-deductible expenses which may be exempted in the subsequent financial years.

The Bank calculates a provision for income tax in accordance with Income Tax Law No. (34) of
2014, and the International Accounting Standard No. (12), which requires recognition of
deferred taxes arising from timing difference in fair value reserve, which may result in deferred
tax liabilities.

Deferred tax is the amounts expected to be paid or received as a result of temporary timing
differences at the consolidated financial statements date between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes. Deferred tax is measured
at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the asset is realized or the liability
is settled, based on laws that have been enacted or substantially enacted at the reporting date.

The carrying values of deferred income tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset to be utilized.

Costs of issuing or purchasing the Bank’s Stocks:

Any costs resuiting from issuing or purchasing the Bank's stocks shall be charged to the
retained earnings (on a net basis after the tax effect of these costs, if any). If the issuance or
purchasing is not completed, these costs shall be recorded as expenses in the consolidated
income statement.

Accounts managed for customers:

This item represent the accounts managed by the Bank on behalf of its customers and shall not
be recognized as part of the Bank’s assets. Charges and commissions of managing these
accounts shall be recognized in the consolidated income statement.

Offsetting:

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the
consolidated statement of financial position only when there is a legally enforceable right to set
off the recognized amounts and the Bank intends to either settle on a net basis, or to realize the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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Revenues and expenses recognition:

Revenues and expenses are recognized based on accrual basis except for revenue on non-
performing deferred sales and non-performing facilities which transferred to the revenue in
suspense account and not recognized within the consolidated income statement.

The commissions shall be recognized as revenues when service is rendered, and the dividends
of companies' stocks shall be recognized upon realization (approved by the General Assembly
of Shareholders).

Trade date accounting:
Sale or purchase of financial assets is recognized at the trade date (the date that the Bank
commits to purchase or sell the asset).

Foreign Currencies:
Transactions in foreign currencies during the year shall be recorded at the prevailing exchange
rate at the date of the transaction (Al Tagabud).

Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated to the functional currencies at
the rates of exchange prevailing at the consolidated statement of financial position date as
published by the Central Bank of Jordan.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies carried at fair value are translated at
the date in which the fair value was determined.

Any gains or losses are recognized within the consolidated income statement.

Translation gains or losses on non-monetary items carried at fair value (such as shares) are
recognized within the fair value reserve.

Cash and cash equivalents:

Cash and cash equivalents consists of cash and balances with central banks and balances at
banks and financial institutions with a maturity of three months, net of due to banks and financial
institutions that matures within three months and restricted balances.
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(3) Use of estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of financial assets and liabilities
and disclosure of contingent liabilities. These estimates and assumptions also affect the
revenues and expenses and the resultant provisions as well as fair value changes reported in
shareholders’ equity and unrestricted account holders' equity. In particular, considerable
judgment by management is required in the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash
flows. Such estimates are necessarily based on assumptions about several factors involving
varying degrees of judgment and uncertainty and actual results may differ as a result of
changes in conditions and circumstances of those estimates in the future.

We believe that our estimates in consolidated financial statements are reasonable and
detailed as follows:

- Impairment provision of deferred sales receivables and financing: in determining
impairment of financial assets, judgment is required in the estimation of the amount and
timing of future cash folws as well as an assessment of whether the credit risk on the
financial assets has increased significantly since initial recognition and incorporation of
forward looking information in the measurement of ECL. the Bank appropriate 10% of joint
investments accounts net revenues and are transfer it to the investment risk fund in
accordance with the provisions of Aricle (55) of the Banks Law and compared with
provisions as required by the Central Bank of Jordan.

- Income tax provision: the fiscal year is charged with its related income tax according to the
laws and accounting standards. Also, the deferred tax assets and fiabilities as well as the
required tax provision are estimated and recorded.

- Management periodically revaluates the financial assets carried at cost in order to assess
any impairment. Impairment on financial assets is allocated in accordance to the financing

party.

- A provision is set for the lawsuits raised against the Bank. This provision is based to an
adequate legal study prepared by the Bank’s legal advisor. Moreover, the study highlights
potential risks that the Bank may encounter in the future. Such legal assessments are
reviewed periodically.
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(4) Cash and balances with central banks

This item consists of the following:
31 December 31 December

2018 2017
JD JD

Cash in vaults 159,304,752 136,043,532
Balances at the Central Bank of Jordan:

Current accounts 470,144,768 751,127,150
Statutory cash reserve 246,636,798 251,496,268
Total balances at the Central Bank of Jordan 716,781,666 1,002,623,418
Total 876,086,318 1,138,666,950

In compliance with Islamic Shari'a rules and the Bank's Articles of Association and bylaws,
the Bank does not earn any interest on balances and current accounts held with the Central
Bank of Jordan.

Amounts of JD 22,479,102 and JD 24,530,369 were deducted as at 31 December 2018
and as at 31 December 2017 respectively, which represent cash balances for accounts

managed on behalf of others.

There are no balances maturing within more than three months as at 31 December 2018
and 31 December 2017.

There were no restricted balances except for the statutory cash reserve as at 31 December
2018 and 31 December 2017.
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(5) Balances at banks and financial institutions

This item consists of the following:

Current and on demand accounts
Less:provision for expected credit loss
Total Current and on demand accounts

Unrestricted accounts maturing

within 3 months or less
Less: provision for expected credit loss
Net - total unrestricted accounts

Total

Local banks and

Foreign banks and

financial institutions financial institutions Total
31 31 31 31 31 31
December December December December  December December
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
JD JD JD JD JD JD
1,560 1,560 41,572,535 40,948,938 41,574,095 40,950,498
- (70,702) - (70,702) -
1,560 1,560 41,501,833 40,048,938 41,503,393 40,950,498
- 52,431,501 13,174,135 52,431,501 13,174,135
(19,404) - (19,404) -
- — 52,412,097 13,174,135 52,412,097 13,174,135
1,560 1,560 93,913,930 54,123,073 93,915,490 54,124,633

In compliance with Islamic Shari'a rules and the Bank's Articles of Association bylaws, the Bank
does not earn any interest on current and on demand accounts at local and foreign banks and

financial institutions.

There were no restricted balances at the local and foreign banks and financial institutions as at

31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017.

(6) Investment accounts at banks and financial institutions

This item consists of the following:

Maturing within (9-12) months

Maturing within more than one year

Less: provision for expected credit loss

Total

Foreign banks and financia) institutions

31 December

31 December

2018 2017
JD JD
- 4,254,000
17,725,000 17,725,000
(82,702) :
17,642,298 21,979,000

There were no restricted balances at the foreign banks and financial institutions as at 31
December 2018 and 31 December 2017.
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A. Cumulative movement on balances and accounts with banks and financial
institutions as of 31 December 2018:

Stage 1 Stage 2
Individual Individual  Stage 3 Total
JD wD JD JD

Beginning balance 76,103,633 - - 76,103,633
New balances and accounts during the year 48,801,098 - - 48,801,098
Balances and accounts paid (13,174,135) - - (13,174,135)
Transferred to stage 1 - - - -
Transferred to stage 2 - - 3 .
Transferred to stage 3 - - " -
Adjustments - - - -
Written off Balances and accounts - - - -
Adjustments from Exchange rates effect - - - -
Ending balance 111,73059% - - 111.730,59

B. Cumulative movement on the expected credit loss for banks and financial
institutions as of 31 December 2018:

Stage 1 Stage 2
Individual Individual Stage 3 Total

JD JD JD JD

Beginning balance (Adjusted) 197,488 - - 197,488
Expected cedit loss on New balances and

accounts during the year 18,881 - - 18,881
Expected cedit loss recovered from balances

and accounts paid (43,561) - - (43,561)
Transferred to stage 1 - - - -
Transferred to stage 2 - - - -
Transferred to stage 3 - - - -
Impact on ending balance provision due to

change in staging classification - - - -
Adjustments - - - -
Written off Balances and accounts - - - -

Adjustments from exchange rates effect - - " .

172,808

Ending balance 172,808
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(7) Deferred sales receivables and other receivables —Net

This item consists of the following:

Joint Self

Total

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December

31 December 31 December

2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017

JD JO JD JD JD JD
Indlviduals {Retall):
Murabaha to the purchase orderer 688.314.870 708,556,824 - 686,314,870 709,556,824
Deferred sales 8,307,089 5.814,695 6,307,089 5,814,695
liarah Mawsoofa Bil Thimma 4,337,505 3,330,486 - - 4,337,505 3,330,488
ljarah Muntahia Bittamleek receivables 5,346,892 4,313,190 5.346.892 4,313,180
Istisna‘a 320.000 - 320,000
Cuslomers' receivables 4,461,335 3,794,198 4,699,616 4,513,391 9,160,951 8,307,589
Real estate financing 482,224,820 478,320,883 150,000 200,000 482,374,820 478,520,883
Corporate:
International Murabaha 62,535,408 24,801,372 - - 62,535,408 24,801,372
Istisna‘a 11,175,144 7,542,874 - - 11,175,144 7.542,874
Murabaha to the purchase orderer 379,880.825 366,215,885 - 379,980,825 366,215,885
Deferred sales 9,533 - - - 9,533
liarah Muntahia Bittamleek receivables 258,460 - 258,460
Small and Medium Enterprises (SME’s):
Murabaha to the purchase orderer 153,554,195 149,330,645 - - 153,554,195 149,330,645
Customers’ receivables - - 2,220,948 1,780,687 2.220,946 1,780,687
Deferred sales 37,240 - B - 31,240 »
Government and public sector 601,486,612 558,885,066 9,380 146,920 601,495,992 559,031,986
Total 2,398,343,928 2.311,908.218 7,079,942 6,640,998 2,405,423,870 2,318,547.216
Less: deferred revenues’ (241,676,931) {209,119,776) (12,000) (20.000) (241,688,931) (209,139,776)
Less: suspended revenues** (11.380,098) (11.702,334) (11,380.0986) (11,702,334)
Less: deferred mutual insurance** (5,919,469) - - (5,919,469) -
Less: provision for expected credit loss (92,013,250) (75.451,305) (840,838) (640,760) (92,654,088) (76,092,065)
Not deferred sales and other receivables ~ 2.047.354,182  2,015.632,803 6,427,104 5,980,238  2,053,781,286  2,021,613,041

deferred sales, ljarah Mawsoofa Bil Thimma and Istisna'a.

orderer, deferred sales, ljarah Mawsoofa Bil Thimma and Istisna'a.

orderer, deferred sales and deferred ljarah Mawsoofa Bil Thimma.
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Deferred revenues include the deferred revenues of Murabaha to the purchase orderer,

Suspended revenues include the suspended revenues of Murabaha to the purchase

Deferred mutual insurance includes insurance installments of Murabaha to the purchase



Lz

£2€'€P9

- - - - £2€'¢h9
9g/'1L6 - - - - 9¢2'L6
0€€'/9¢ - - - - 0€€'29¢
152'v8e - - - - 1S2'v82

ar ar ar ar ar ar
[e10] Jojoss sasudisug  sajelodiod Buioueuy e1sy
angnd pue wnipay abien ENACER LN
JUSWUIANOL) pue ||lewsg
€Te'er9 » = = = XA NS
€962 - - - - £95'C
09.'0¥9 - - - - 092'0%9
ar ar ar ar ar ar
12101 10]03S sasudiaug  salesodiod Buiouruy [&EN]
Jignd pue wnipapy abie 3]e1sa [edy
JUBWIUIBACD) pue |ewg

1eaA ay} Jo pua ayj je aouejeg

SISEQ 01|0j0d U0 S3|gEAI3J3l ISI| YI3BM JO SSO| }IPaD pajoadx3
SISEQ J3WOISND [ENPIAIPUI UO PISEQ S3|QBAI323I SIj YJIBM JO SSO| JIpa2 pajoadx3y
SISEQ JBWO}SND |ENPIAIPUI UO $3|qRAIS381 Bulliopad-uau Jo sSO| §1pad pajdadxy

8102 13qwada( LE 1B SY

Ieak ayj jo pua ayj je asue|eg

(syo-aym) Jeak ayy Buunp pasn

1eak ayy Buunp 0y Jaysuels|

Jeal ay) jo Buiwubaq 12 soueleg

g10Z J1aquada L g papua Jeak ay] 104

'SMOJ|0) SB 219M SSO] JIpald pajdadxas paauedl j|os - BuioUuBUl, PUB S9|GRAISI31 JAYJ0 ‘SO|GEAISIS] SS|ES PaIIajop U0 SJUSWBAON

8102 1aquisdaq Lg
SJUBWAIL}S |RI1dUBLIH PAIEPIJOSUOY) 3} 0} S3J0N
Auedwoy Buipjoyaieys ol|qnd - jueg olwe|s| uepJop



8T

'/10¢ JsquiadaQ L¢ pue 8102
Jaquiadaq L€ Je se yelel] pue 'Buioueul) 'S3|qealadal JaYj0 O) palssjsuel} JuswAedal Jo JusWa|ias Jo jnsal e se pasinbai sabuo| ou suoisinold ou ase alsy |

1e3A 3y} JO puad 3y} je aduejey

092'0¥9 - - - - 08.'0v9
6£9'v6 2 = : z 6£9'V6 siseq ofjojuod uo S9|qeAIadal }SI| YIJeM JO SSO| HIpad pajdadx3
pL1'8SZ - - - - pL1'862 SISEQ JaWOISNO U0 S3|qBAIS3l 1Si| YIIEM JO S§SO| JIpad pajoadx]
100882 - - - - 1/00'882 SISEQ J3WOJSNJ U0 s3|geaasas Bulwlopad-uou jo sso| JIpad pajoadxy
2102 13qui8daQ L¢ je sy

ar ar ar ar ar ar
[ejol 101098 sasudiajug  sajesodiod Buueuy ey
2119nd pue wnipay abieq 9)e1sa [eay

JUBWUJBA0D)  PUE [|BWIS

Jeak ayj Jo pua 3y je adue|eg

092°0¥9 - - . - 092'0¥9
) - = = = (0v2'6) (syo-ajum) Jeak ay} Bunnp pasn
- - - - - - Jeak ayl Buunp o) raysues |
000'0S9 - - - - 000'0S9 1eak ay} jo buluwbag je soueieg
110Z Jaquianaq g papusa JeaA ayj 504

ar ar ar ar ar ar
|eyo] 10]08s sasudiaug  sajelodiod Buioueuyy ey
o11gnd pue WnIpa abien 3)elsa |eay

JUSWUJSA0D)  pUR ||eWS

8102 J3quadeQ Lg
SJUBW]R)S [BIJUBUI4 PAJBPI|OSUO0Y) 3y} 0] S3J0N
Auedwos Buipjoyaiteys 21[qnd - yueg diwe|s| uepior



Jordan Islamic Bank - Public Shareholding Company
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

31 December 2018

Movements on the deferred sales receivables were as follow:

Balance at the beginning of the year

Additions
Disposals

Balance at the end of the year

31 December 2018

Movements on the suspended revenues were as follows:

Balance at the beginning of the year

Add: suspended revenues during
the year

Less: revenue in suspense
reversed o income

Less: suspended revenues
written off

Balance at the end of the year

Balance at the beginning of the year

Add: suspended revenues during
the year

Less: revenue in suspense
reversed to income

Less: suspended revenues
written off

Balance at the end of the year

Deferred sales Deferred
receivables revenues
JD JD
5,814,695 462,371
5,180,335 424 229
(4,647,168) (356,026)
6,347 862 530,574
Joint
31 December 2018
Small and
Real estate Large Medium
Retail financing corporates Enterprises Total
JO JD JD JD JD
2,820,964 4,140,350 2,890,168 1,850,852 11,702,334
2,944,325 185,993 367,492 419,678 3,917,388
(384,991)  (1,892,252) (838,863) (391,512) (3,507,618)
(307,607) - (123,333) (301,068) (732,008)
5,072,691 2,434,091 2,295,464 1,677,850 11,380,096
Joint
31 December 2017
Small and
Real estate Large Medium
Retail financing corporates Enterprises Total
JD JD JD JD JD
2,536,469 3,442,334 2,792,514 1,829,793 10,601,110
1,263,682 1,714,989 1,391,245 911,612 5,281,528
(798,085) (620,073) (1,293,591) (711,250)  (3.422,999)
(181,102) (396,900) - (179,303) (757,305)
2,820,964 4,140,350 2,890,168 1,850,852 11,702,334
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Jordan Islamic Bank - Public Shareholding Company
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
31 December 2018

(8) liarah Muntahia Bittamleek assets - Net

This item consists of the following:

Joint
31 December 2018
Accumulated Net Book
Cost Depreciation Value
JD JD JD
ljarah Muntahia Bittamleek assets - real estate 788,709,669 (182,907,797) 605,801,762
Joint

31 December 2017

Accumulated Net Book
Cost Depreciation Value
JD JD JD
ljarah Muntahia Bittamleek assets - real estate 771,862,142 (181,017,707) 590,844,435

The accrued ljarah instalments amounted to JD 5,605,352 as at 31 December 2018 (2017: JD
4,313,190) were included in deferred sales receivables and other receivables (Note 7).

(9) Financing - Net

This item consists of the following:

Joint Self Total

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December

2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
JD JD JO JD JD JD

Individuals (Retail):
Diminishing Musharaka 31,041,161 30,098.937 256,148 282,101 31,297,309 30,381,038
Corporate
Musharaka 2,112,320 812,000 - - 2,112,320 812,000
Total 33,153,481 30,910,937 256,148 282,101 33,409,629 31,193,038
Less: provision for expected
credit loss (703,355) (212,681) (2,485) - (705.,840) (212,681)
Net Financing 32,450,126 30,698,256 253,663 282,101 32,703,789 30,980,357

Non-performing deferred sales receivables, ijarah Muntahia Bittamleek receivables, other
receivables, financing and Al Qard Al Hasan amounted to JD 113,148,841 as at 31 December
2018, representing 4.62 % of deferred sales receivable, ljarah Muntahia Bittamleek receivables,
other receivables, financing and Al Qard Al Hasan balance compared to JD 105,387,265 as at 31
December 2017, representing 4.46 % of the utilized balance.
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Jordan Islamic Bank - Public Shareholding Company
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
31 December 2018

Non-performing deferred sales receivables, ljarah Muntahia Bittamleek receivables, other
receivables, financing and Al Qard Al Hasan after deducting suspended revenues amounted to JD
102,842,456 as at 31 December 2018, representing 4.21 % of deferred sales, ljarah Muntahia
Bittamleek receivables, other receivables, financing and Al Qard Al Hasan balance, compared to JD
94,757,588 as at 31 December 2017, represeniing 4.03 % of the utilized balance.

Deferred sales, other receivables, and financing granted to and guaranteed by the Government of
Jordan amounted to JD 604,491,076 as at 31 December 2018, representing 24.76 % of deferred
sales, other receivables and financing balance, compared to JD 562,027,070 as at 31 December
2017, representing 23.90 % of the utilized balance.

A. Cumulative movement on direct facilities as of 31 December 2018:

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
8 Individual Collective Individual Collective
JD JD JD JD JO JO
Balance at the beginning of the year 705,716,391 638,987,899 650,299,780 26,495,310 120,896,299 2,142,395,679
New facilities during
the year 429,367,219 591,183,441 16,980,230 6,250,194 6,262,450 1,050,043,534
Settled facilities (321,510,887)  (315,970,129)  (306,600,645) (6,323,700) (40,661,125)  (991,066,486)
Transferred to stage 1 114,494,855 14,659,652 (114,494,855) (12,231,692) (2,427,960)
Transferred to stage 2 (131,588,485) (21,396,510) 135,310,923 23,103,459 (5,429,387) -
Transferred to stage 3 (9.579.410) (18,204,379) (26,221,681) (7,951,267) 61,956,737 -
Adjustments - - - -
Written off facilities - - - - (7,247,230) (7,247,230)
Adjustments from exchange
rates effect N
786,859,683 889,259,974 355,273,752 29,342,304 133,349,784  2,194,125.497

Balance at the end of the year
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Jordan Islamic Bank - Public Shareholding Company
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
31 December 2018

(10)  Financial assets at fair value through owner’s equity — self financed

This item consists of the following:

Quoted financial assets
Companies shares
Total financial assets — quoted

Unquoted financial assets

Companies shares

Al Wakala Bi Al Istithmar (investment portfolio})

Total financial assets - unquoted

Total financial assets at fair vaiue through owner's
equity — self financed

31 December

31 December

2018 2017
JD JD

2,811,479 2,623,375

2,911,479 2,623,375

1,781,215 1,605,450

6,000,000 6,400,000

7,781,215 8,005,450
10,692,694 10,528,825

Financial assets stated at cost, as their fair value cannot be reliably measured amounted to JD
6,000,000 as at 31 December 2018 compared to JD 6,400,000 as at 31 December 2017.

(11)  Financial assets at fair vaiue through investment accounts holders’ equity - joint

This item consists of the following:

Quoted financial assets:
Companies shares
Total quoted financial assets

Unquoted financial assets:

Companies shares

Islamic banks portfolio

Al Wakala Bi Al Istithmar (investment portfolio )

Total unquoted financial assets

Total financial assets at fair value through the investment
accounts holders’ equity - joint

31 December

31 December

2018 2017
JD JD
19,746,863 21,956,512
19,746,863 21,956,512
4,638,897 2,568,643
709,000 709,600
11,500,000 12,150,000
16,847,897 15,427,643
36,594,760 37,384,155

Financial assets stated at cost, as their fair vaiue cannot be reliably measured amounted to JD
16,847,897 as at 31 December 2018 compared to JD 15,427,643 at of 31 December 2017.
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Jordan Islamic Bank - Public Shareholding Company
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
31 December 2018

(12) Financial assets at amortized cost

This item consists of the following:

Quoted financial assets

Islamic Sukuk

Provision for expected credit loss for financial assets
Total quoted financial assets

Unquoted financial assets

fslamic Sukuk

Islamic banks portfolio

Total unquoted financial assets

Provision for expected credit loss for financial assets
Net unquoted financial assets

Total Financial Assets at amortized cost

31 December

31 December

2018 2017
JD JD
9,908,984 9,908,984
(1,453,352) -
8,455,632 9,908,984
178,682,600 67,743,300
6,432,809 2,274,896
185,115,409 70,018,196
(1,897,662) (1,818,373)
183,217,747 68,199,823
191,673,379 78,108,807

Islamic Sukuk rate of return ranges between 2.8% - 5.47% payable on a semi-annual basis, with

a maturity of 5 years.

Islamic Sukuk in US Dollars rate of return ranges between 6.5 % - 10.5 % payable on an annual

basis,with a maturity of 7 years

The Bank has amended the Business Model as islamic banks and tstamic Sukuks have been
reclassified from Financial Assets at Fair Value through Investment Account Hoider's Equity —
Joint amounting to JD 16,793,444 as at 1 January 2018 to financial assets at amortized cost. In
accordance with the instructions of the Central Bank of Jordan No. (13/2018) dated 6 June

2018.
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Jordan Islamic Bank - Public Shareholding Company
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
31 December 2018

A. Cumulative movement on investments as of 31 December 2018:

Stage 1 Stage 2
Individual Individual Stage 3 Total
JD JD JD JD

Fair value at the beginning of the year 71,018,989 7,090,000 1,818,191 79,927,180
New investments during the year 121,769,913 - - 121,769,913
Matured investments (6,672,700) - - (6,672,700)
Change in fair value - - - _
Transferred to stage 1 - - - -
Transferred to stage 2 - - - -
Transferred to stage 3 - - - -
Adjustments - - - -
Written off facilities - - - -
Adjustments from exchange rates effect - - - :
Balance at the end of the year 186,116,202 7,090,000 1,818,191 195,024,393

B. Cumulative movement on the expected credit loss for financial investments as of 31
December 2018:

Stage 1 Stage 2
Individual Individual Stage 3 Total
JD JD JD JO
Balance at the beginning of the year 111,060 2,198,698 1,818,191 4,127,949
Expected credit loss on investments
during the year 60,521 - - 60,521
Expected credit loss recovered from
matured investments (69,997) - - (69,997)

Transferred fo stage 1 - - - »
Transferred to stage 2 - - -

Transferred to stage 3 -

Adjustments - (767,459) - (767,459)
Written off investments - - - B,
Adjustments from exchange rates effect

Balance at the end of the year 101,584 1,431,239 1,818,191 3,351,014
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Jordan Islamic Bank - Public Shareholding Company
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
31 December 2018

(14) Investments in real estate

This item consists of the following:

Joint
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
JD JD
Investments in real estate * 127,806,724 120,757,937
Provision for repossessed investments in real estate ** (12,363) (12,363)
Impairment provision for repossessed investments in real estate (1,414,500) (633,171)
Net Assets 126,379,861 120,212,403

L3

Investments in real estate are presented at fair value, with a book value (cost) of
JD 114,991,862 as at 31 December 2018 compared toc JD 109,252,579 as at 31 December
2017,

Impairment for repossessed investments in real estate was provided for starting from
1 January 2016 according to the Central Bank of Jordan letter No. (10/1/2510) dated 14
February 2017 by charging 10% annually until the impairment provision reaches 50% of
investment in real estate value. According to subsequent Central Bank of Jordan circular No.
(10/1/16607) dated 17 December 2017, it was decided to suspend the prior circular for the year
2018, and to continue to recognize such provision starting from the year 2019.
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Jordan Islamic Bank - Public Shareholding Company
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
31 December 2018

(15) Al Qard Al Hasan - Net

This item consists of the following:

31 December 31 December

2018 2017
JD JD
Al Qard Al Hasan 14,280,494 13,497,535
Less: provision for expected credit loss - self* (2,554,737) (4,500,000)
Al Qard Al Hasan - Net 11,725,757 8,997,535

*

Movements on assets expected cedit loss - self were as follows:

Appropriated Used Transferred
Beginning  during the duringthe  during the  Transferred Ending

balance year year year to revenues  balance
JD JD JD JD JD JD
31 December 2018
Expected credit loss-Self 4,500,000 300,000 - (2,245,263) - 2,654,737
Total 4,500,000 300,000 - (2,245,263) - 2,554,737

Appropriated Used Transferred
Beginning  during the during the  during the  Transferred Ending

balance year year year to revenues  balance
JD JD JD JD JD JD
31 December 2017
Expected credit loss-Self 4,500,000 - - - - 4,500,000
Total 4,500,000 - - - - 4,500,000

38



Jordan Islamic Bank - Public Shareholding Company
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
31 December 2018

(16) Property and equipment - Net

This item consists of the following:

31 December 2018

Equipment,
Furniture
Land Buildings and Fixtures Vehicles Computers Total
JD JD JD JD JD JD
Cost
Beginning balance 30,217,226 33,417,223 49,711,346 2,333,871 15,046,201 130,725,867
Additions 2,078,980 8,386,116 5.468,749 478,052 2,697,151 19,109,048
Disposals - (347.525) (1.056,801) (352,524) (2.289,103) (4,045,953)
Ending balance 32,296,206 41455814 54,123,294 2,459,399 15,454,249 145,788,962
Accumulated Depreciation ; (6.588.002) (39,559,889)  (1,013.404)  (13,502.368)  (60.663.663)
Depreciation of the year - (721.473)  (4.429,676) (121,665) (1.429,800) (6,702.614)
Disposals . 5 699,570 62,155 2,181,389 2,943,114
Ending balance 2 (7.309,475)  (43,289,995)  (1,072,914)  (12,750,779)  (64,423,163)

Net book value of property

and equipment 32,296,206 34,146,339 10,833,299 1,386,485 2,703,470 81,365,799
Payments on purchase of

property and equipment - - 999,985 613,672 1,613,657
Projects in progress . 331,756 - - 331,756
Net property and equipment

at the end of the year 32,296,206 34,478,095 11,833,284 1,386,485 3,317,142 83,311,212




Jordan Islamic Bank - Public Shareholding Company
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
31 December 2018

31 December 2017

Equipment,
Furniture
Land Buildings and Fixtures Vehicles Computers Total
JD JD JD JD JD JO

Cost
Beginning balance 27,601,454 32,980,721 46,493,640 2,558,545 13,654,762 123,289,122
Additions 2,615,772 887,351 3,344,251 3,231 1,621,117 8,471,722
Disposals - (450,849) (126,545) (227,905) (229,678) (1,034,977)
Ending balance 30,217,226 33,417,223 49,711,346 2,333,871 15,046,201 130,725,867
Accumulated Depreciation - (6,025,506)  (35.080,825) (964,807)  (12,292.777)  (54,363,915)
Depreciation of the year - (562.496) (4,515,437) (86,820) (1,436,769) (6,601,522)
Disposals - - 36,373 38,223 227,178 301,774
Ending balance - (6,588,002)  (39,559,888)  (1,013,404) (13,502,368) (60,663,663)
Net book value of property

and equipment 30,217,226 26,829,221 10,151,457 1,320,467 1,543,833 70,062,204
Payments on purchase of
property and equipment - - 1,441,074 - 531,290 1,972,364
Projects in Progress - 5,994,398 - - - 5,894,398
Net property and equipment
at the end of the year 30,217,226 32,823,619 11,592,531 1,320,467 2,075,123 78,028,966

Fully depreciated property and equipment amounted to JD 51,366,220 as at 31 December 31 2018
compared to JD 42,674,628 as at 31 December 2017.

(17) _ Depreciation and amortization

This item consists of the following;

31 December 31 December

2018 2017
JD JD
Property and equipment depreciation 6,702,614 6,601,522
Intangible assets amortization 751,325 1,134,758
Total 7,453,939 7,736,280
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Jordan Islamic Bank - Public Shareholding Company
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

31 December 2018

(18) Intangible assets

This item consists of the following:

Beginning balance
Additions
Amortization

Total
Payments on softwares purchases

Ending balance

(19) Other assets

This item consists of the following:

Accrued revenues

Prepaid expenses

Temporary debit accounts
Stationery and publications

Prepaid rent

Stamps

Credit card accounts

Settlement guarantee fund deposits

Refundable deposits
Acceptable notes

Others
Total

Computer Computer
systems and systems and
softwares softwares
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
JD JD
520,471 1,397,651
760,079 257,578
(751,325) (1,134,758)
529,225 520,471
1,769,911 1,027,607
2,299,136 1,548,078

31 December

31 December

2018 2017

JD JD
146,637 134,927
297,742 330,653
4,808,445 4,819,929
656,291 534,922
751,091 824,112
826,791 623,793
1,434,322 1,653,925
25,000 27,000
303,267 329,528
124,178 382,319
305,503 556,257
9,679,267 10,217,365
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Jordan {stamic Bank - Public Shareholding Company
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
31 December 2018

(20)  Banks and financial institutions accounts

This item consists of the following:
31 December 2018

31 December 2017

Inside the  Outside the Inside the Outside the
Kingdom Kingdom Total Kingdom Kingdom Total

JD JD JD JD JD JD

Current and on demand
accounts 88,555 8,152,801 8,241,356 88,555 4,923,485 5,012,040
Total 88,555 8,152,801 8,241,356 88,555 4,923,485 5,012,040
(21) Customers’ current and on demand accounts
This item consists of the following:
31 December 2018
Small and Government
Large Medium and public
Retail corporates  Enterprises sector Total
JD JD JD JD JD
Current accounts 640,984,406 15,946,995 184,769,776 30,962,143 872,663,320
On demand accounts 201,949,458 2,720 1,392,274 298 203,344,750
Total 842,933,864 15,849,715 186,162,050 30,962,441 1,076,008,070
31 December 2017
Small and Government
Large Medium and public
Retail corporates  Enterprises sector Total
JD JD JD JD JD

Current accounts 692,017,939 19,137,632 178,312,541 28,112,611 917,580,723
On demand accounts 208,882,486 98,943 1,154,915 - 210,136,344
Total 900,900,425 19,236,575 179,467,456 28,112,611 1,127,717,067

Government and public sector deposits inside the Kingdom amounted to JD 30,962,441 representing
2.88 % of the total customers' current and on demand accounts as at 31 December 2018 compared

to JD 28,112,611 representing 2.49 % as at 31 December 2017.

Dormant accounts amounted to JD 48,071,967 as of 31 December 2018 compared to JD 48,537,772

as of 31 December 2017.

The restricted accounts amounted to JD 5,639,774, representing 0.52 % of the total customers’
current and on demand accounts as of 31 December 2018 compared to JD 6,722,099 representing
0.60 % as of 31 December 2017 of the total customers’ current and on demand accounts.
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Jordan Islamic Bank - Public Shareholding Company
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

31 December 2018

{(22) Cash margins

The item consists of the following:

Cash margins against sales receivables, finances and

other receivables

Cash margins against indirect facilities

Other margins

Total

(23) Accounts payable

The item consists of the following:

Customers’ accounts payable

Total

(24) Other provisions

This item consists of the following:

End of service indemnity provision
Legal case held against bank provision

Employees’ vacation provision
Contingencies provision”

Total

31 December

31 December

2018 2017
JD JD
13,994,067 16,155,755
24,172,828 24,688,177
7,043,323 7,063,045
45,210,218 47,906,977

31 December

31 December

2018 2017
JD JD
400,227 812,999
400,227 812,999
31 December 2018
Appropriated Transferred  Utilized
Beginning during the during the during Ending
Balance year year the year Balance
JD JD JD JD

3,500,000 300,000 - - 3,800,000
- 75,000 - - 75,000
3,250,000 150,000 - - 3,400,000
4,540,108 - 2,171,998 - 6,712,106
11,290,108 525,000 2,171,998 - 13,987,106
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Jordan Islamic Bank - Public Shareholding Company
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
31 December 2018

31 December 2017

Appropriated Utilized
Beginning during the during the Ending
Balance year year Balance
JD JD JD JD
End of service indemnity provision 3,500,000 - - 3,500,000
Employees' vacation provision 3,000,000 250,000 - 3,250,000
Total 6,500,000 250,000 - 6,750,000

* Beginning balance represents amounts transferred to retained earnings as a result of IFRS (9)
implementation.

(25) Income tax provision

A. Bank’s income tax provision

Movements on the Bank'’s income tax provision were as fcllows:

31 December

31 December

2018 2017
JD JD
Beginning balance for the year 23,760,966 25,425,244
Income tax paid (22,247,035) (23,095,980)
Income tax expense 25,596,078 26,799,702
Income tax paid for the years 2018, 2017 (4,650,6306) (5,368,000)
Ending balance for the year 22,459,373 23,760,966

B. Income tax expense shown in the consolidated income statement represents the following:

31 December

31 December

2018 2017
JD JD
Income tax for the profit of the year 25,596,078 26,799,702
Total 25,596,078 26,799,702

Income tax provision for the year ended 31 December 2018 was calculated in accordance with the
income tax law No. (34) of 2014.

The Bank obtained final income tax clearance up to the year 2015, and submitted its Income tax
declaration for the years 2016 and 2017,

Al Samaha Financing and Investment Company Ltd., and Sanabel Al-Khair obtained final income tax
clearance up to the years 2014 and 2016. Future Applied Computer Technology Company Ltd
obtained final income tax clearance up to the year 2014. Omariah Schools Company Lid. has
obtained final income tax clearance up to 2016, all subsidiaries mentioned have submitted their
income tax declaration up to the year 2017.
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(26) Deferred tax liabilities

This item consists of the following:

31 December
31 December 2018 2017

Amounts
released  Additions
Beginning  during the  during the Ending Deferred

Balance year year Balance Tax Deferred Tax
JD JD JD JD JD JD

A. Deferred tax liabilities =Joint*
Financial assets at fair value through the

joint investment accounts holders' equity 315,946  (1,660,429) - (1.344,483)  (510,904) 110,581
Investments in real estate 11,505,358 (885,179) 2,194,683 12,814,862 4,869,648 4,026,875
Total 11,821,304  (2,545,608) 2,194,683 11,470,379 4,358,744 4,137,456
B. Deferred tax liabilities —

self financed **
Financial assets at fair vaiue through

owner's equity 1,858,650 - 359,840 2,218,490 843,026 650,528
Total 1,858,650 - 359,840 2,218,490 843,026 650,528

Deferred tax liabilities - joint includes an amount of JD 4,358,744 as at 31 December 2018
compared to JD 4,137,456 as at 31 December 2017 resuiting from the profits of evaluating

financial and non-financial assets within the fair value reserve of the unrestricted investment
accounts holders'.

**  Deferred tax liabilities - self financed includes an amount of JD 843,026 as at 31 December
2018 compared to JD 650,528 as at 31 December 2017 resulting from the profits of evaluating

financial assets within the fair value reserve of owner's equity.

Movements on deferred tax liabilities were as follows:

(26-A). Joint
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
JD JO
Beginning Balance 4,137,456 6,036,616
Additions 221,288 -
Disposals - (1,899,160)
Ending Balance 4,358,744 4,137,456
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(26-B). Self

Beginning Balance
Additions

Ending Balance

31 December

31 December

2018 2017
JD JD
650,528 327,556
192,498 322,972
843,026 650,528

(26-C). Reconciliation between tax profit and accounting profit:

Accounting profit
Non-taxable profit
Nondeductible expenses

Taxable profit

Attributable to:

Bank

Subsidiaries

Statutory income tax rate - Bank
Statutory income tax rate - Subsidiaries
Effective income tax rate

{27) Other liabilities

This item consists of the following:

Accepted cheques

Revenues received in advance
Al Qard Al Hasan Fund
Temporary deposits
Miscellaneous credit balances
Cheques against notes payables
Banker’'s cheques

Others

Total

31 December

31 December

2018 2017
JD JD

75,404,005 80,938,755
(3,268,452)  (4,799,199)
1,022,963 459,592
73,158,516 76,599,148
73,073,037 76,508,240
85,479 90,908
35% 35%
24% 24%
35% 33.1%

31 December

31 December

2018 2017

JD JD
2,434,928 2,349,414
1,769,897 1,824,752
2,255,054 1,725,402
733,473 837,793
3,187,982 2,310,889
4,499,872 4,748,093
6,871,191 4,060,896
3,454,373 1,512,432
25,206,770 19,369,671
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(28.A)

Unrestricted investment accounts

This item consists of the following:

31 December 2018

Smail and Government
Large Medium and public
Retail corporates  Enterprises sector Banks Total
JD Jo JD JD JD JD

Saving accounts 527,628,610 1,248,540 9,913,534 283 7,273,225 546,064,192
Notice accounts 9,420,541 - 9,586,684 591,906 4,353,361 23,952,492
Term accounts 1,739,495,308 5,747,054 115,230,166 26,852,499 - 1,887,325,027
Total 2,276,544,459 6,995594 134,730,384 27,444,688 11,626,586 2,457,341,711
Depositors' share from

|nve51ment returns 47|950,1 11 147,346 2,848,453 578,059 104,600 51 ,628.569
Total unrestricted

investment accounts 2,324,494,570 7,142,940 137,578,837 28,022,747 11,731,186  2,508,970,280

31 December 2017
Small and Government
Large Medium and public
Retail corporates  Enterprises sector Banks Total
JD JD JO JO JD JD

Saving accounts 528,827,240 500,694 9,046,343 8,292 660,701 539,043,270
Notice accounts 8,435,099 - 5,183,099 16,768,150 - 31,386,348
Term accounts 1,742,127,050 5,641,113 114,447,071 43,761,138 5,000,000 1,810,976,370
Total 2,280,389,389 6,141,807 128,676,513 60,537,578 5,660,701  2,481,405,988
Depositors’ share from

investment returns 49,303,663 132,790 2,798,424 1,308,866 10,899 53,554,642
Total unrestricted

investment accounts 2,329,693,052 6,274,597 131,474,937 61,846,444 5671600 2,534,960,630

Unrestricted investment accounts share of profits is calculated as follows:

- 40% of the annual average balance of saving accounts.
- 70% of the annual average balance of notice accounts.

- 90% of the minimum balance of term accounts.

Profit percentage for Jordanian Dinars deposits was 3.10 % as at 31 December 2018 compared to
3.20 % as at 31 December 2017, profit percentage of foreign currencies deposits was 1.10 % as at
31 December 2018 compared to 1.04 % as at 31 December 2017.

Unrestricted investment accounts (Government of Jordan and Public Sector) inside the Kingdom
amounted to JD 28,022,747, representing 1.12 % of the total unrestricted investment accounts as
at 31 December 2018 compared to JD 61,846,444, representing 2.44 % as of 31 December
2017,

The withdrawal restricted investment accounts were amounted to JD 4,750,541 representing
0.19 % of the total unrestricted investment accounts as at 31 December 2018 compared to JD
3,978,505, representing 0.16 % as at 31 December 2017.
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(28.B) Investment accounts holders’ reserve and non- controlling interest — in subsidiaries
and associates

This item consists of the following:

Joint
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
JD JO
Investment accounts holders’ reserve — Subsidiaries 15,486,116 14,948,159
Investment accounts holders' reserve — Associates 2,658,786 2,686,701
Total 18,144,902 17,634,860
Non-Controlling Interests 153,866 165,487
(29)  Fairvalue reserve
This item consists of the following:
(A) Joint
Joint
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
JD JO
Financial assets at fair value through joint investment accounts
holders' equity reserve (833,579) 205 365
Investments in real estate reserve 7,945,214 7,478,483
Total 7,111,635 7,683,848
(B) Self
Self
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
JD JD
Financial assets at fair value through owner's equity - self 1,375,464 1,208,122
Total 1,375,464 1,208,122
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(C) Movements on the fair value reserve for the unrestricted investment accounts holders’

equity were as following:

Beginning Balance *

Unrealized (loss) profits

Deferred tax liabilities

Profits transferred to the consolidated income

statement

Ending Balance

Beginning Balance *

Unrealized loss

Deferred tax liabilities

Profits transferred to the consolidated income

statement

Ending Balance

31 December 2018

Financial
assets at fair  [nvestments
value in real estate Total
JD JD JD
315,946 11,505,358 11,821,304
(1,660,429) 2,194 683 534,254
510,904 (4,869,648) (4,358,744)
- (885,179) (885,179)
(833,579) 7,945.214 7,111,635
31 December 2017
Financial
assets at fair Investments
value in real estate Total
JD JD JD
2,211,454 15,036,019 17,247,473
(1,895,508) (3,457,182) (5,352,690)
(110,581) (4,026,875) (4,137,456)
- (73,479) (73,479)
205,365 7,478,483 7,683,848

* The fair value reserve beginning balance includes the prior year deferred tax liabilities of JD

4,137,456.
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(D) Movements on the fair value reserve / owner’'s equity were as follows:
Financial assets at fair value

31 December 31 December

2018 2017
JD JD
Beginning Balance” 1,858,650 935,875
Unrealized profits 359,840 922,775
Deferred tax liabilities (843,026) (650,528)
Ending Balance 1,375,464 1,208,122

*

The fair value reserve beginning balance includes the prior year deferred tax liabilities of
JD 650,528.

(E) Provision for probable contingencies:

Movements on probable contingent provisions were as follows:

31 December 31 December

2018 2017
JD JD
Beginning balance for the year - -
Effect of IFRS (9) adoption 581,915
Adjusted beginning batance 581,915 -
Movement during the year 460,602 -
Ending Balance for the year 1,042,517 -
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(30) Investment risk fund:

A. Movements on the investment risk fund were as follows:

31 December

31 December

2018 2017

JD JD
Beginning Balance 105,233,556 95,629,553
Add: transferred from investment profits during the year 19,175,849 19,123,046
Tax settlement - Net (1,515) 22,265
Amounts recovered from prior years losses 1,489,269 420,916
Losses written off during the year* (6,593,432) (4,857,404)
Less: tax payments for the years 2018, 2017 (1,412,345) (1,358,788)
Net accrued income tax™* (3,455,761) (3,746,032)
Ending Balance 114,435,621 105,233,556

The losses charged to the fund as at 31 December 2018 represent debt amortization losses at

the sum of JD 6,543,067 compared to a sum of JD 4,857,404 as at 31 December 2017.Realized
losses from sale of investment in shares as at 31 December 2018 was JD 50,365 in accordance
with Article (55) of the Banks Law and the Interpretation issued by the Bureau of Laws

Interpretation.

A percentage of 10 % was deducted from the net realized joint investment profits from different
transactions as at 31 Decembper 2018 and transferred to the investment risk fund (2017: 10 %.)

Investment risk fund balance devolves to the Zakah fund in case of the Bank’s liquidation.

**  The aforementioned fund income tax item represents:

Beginning balance for the year
Paid income tax
Accrued income tax

Tax payment for the years 2018, 2017

Ending balance for the year

31 December

31 December

2018 2017

JD JO
3,746,032 652,909
(3,746,032) (652,909)
4,868,106 5,104,820
(1,412,345) (1,358,788)
3,455,761 3,746,032
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B. The Investment risk fund balance is distributed as follows:

31 December 31 December

2018 2017
JD JD

Ending Balance 114,435,621 105,233,556
Expected credit loss for deferred sales receivables — (Note 7) 88,833,924 73,700,869
Expected credit loss for ljarah Muntahia Bittamleek

receivables — (Note 7) 2,089,881 1,820,617
Expected credit loss for financing — (Note 9) 703,355 212,681
Repossessed investment in real estate — (Note 14) 12,363 12,363
Impaiment provision for repossessed investment in

real estate — (Note 14) 1,414,500 533,171
Expected credit loss for financial assets — (Note 12) 3,351,014 1,818,373
Expected credit loss for investment accounts — (Note 5,6) 102,106 -
Expected credit loss for probable contingencies — (Note 29/F) 1,042,617 -
Total expected credit loss and impairment provision 97,549,660 77,498,074
Mutual insurance fund share — deferred sales receivables

(expected credit loss) (14,440,599) (8,417,661)
Mutual insurance fund share — ljarah Muntahia Bittamleek

receivable (expected credit loss) (328,020) (197,344)
Remaining Balance * 31,654,580 36,350,487

* The remaining undistributed balance is related to the joint investment accounts.

Income tax of the investment risk fund was seftled up to the year 2015 and income tax return was
filed for the year 2016,2017. Declared tax was settled in accordance with the related Shari'a Fatwa.
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C. Mutual Insurance Fund

Movements on the mutual insurance fund were as follows:

31 December

31 December

2018 2017
JD JD
Beginning balance 80,887,125 73,711,297
Add: profits for the years 2017 and 2016 2,139,556 1,981,015
Add: insurance premiums collected during the year 1,148,010 14,806,862
Add: amounts recovered from prior years losses 39,737 42,614
Less: insurance premiums paid during the year (4,422,911) {(4,208,919)
Less: tax payments for the years 2017,2018 - (709,438)
Less: income tax fund for the years 2017 and 2016 (3,513,547) (4,180,404)
Less: fund's committee members remunerations (16,000) (16,000)
Less: consulting fees (13,340) (1,740)
Less: Insurance paid for the dissolution of contracts before
1 January 2018 (222,440) -
Less: losses written off during the year (653,798) (538,162)
Ending balance 75,372,392 80,887,125

The mutual insurance fund was established based on Article (54) - paragraph (D/3) of the Banks
Law No. (28) for the year 2000.

Prior approval of the Central Bank of Jordan must be obtained in case of any changes to the mutual
insurance fund policies.

In case of discontinuing the mutual insurance fund for any reason, the Board of Directors shall
determine the way of spending the fund’s sources for charity.

The Central Bank of Jordan approved considering the Mutual Insurance Fund as mitigating risk
exposure according to its letter No. (10/1/12160) dated 9 October 2014.

Compensation payment for the subscriber is made from the Fund as determined by the Bank from
the subscriber’s outstanding debt insured in Murabaha or in any other form of deferred sales or as
determined by the Bank from the debt and/or the remaining amount from the ljarah asset in the
following cases:

- Death of subscriber.

- The subscriber’s physical disability, fully or partially.

- The subscriber's insolvency due to lack of income sources for at least one year, without having an
assets or possessing the leased estate to settle his debt and has no opportunity to obtain income
source in the upcoming year that enable the debtor to settle his debt or to continue in the finance
lease.
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Mutual insurance fund balance is allocated as follows:

31 December 31 December

2018 2017
JD JO
Ending balance 75,372,392 80,887,125
Expected credit loss for deferred sales receivables (14,440,599) (8,417,661)
Expected credit loss for ljarah Muntahia Bittamleek receivables (328,020) (197,344)
Excess of mutual insurance fund 60,603,773 72,272,120

The expected credit loss of deferred sales receivables and ljarah Muntahia Bittamleek receivables
included in the mutual insurance fund was computed starting from 31 December 2014 in accordance
to the approval of the Central 8ank of Jordan.

As of the beginning of 2018, the group has applied the accrual basis instead of cash basis with
regards to insurance premiums received from subscribers, additionally, it was approved to increase

the ceiling of coverage to become JD 150 thousand instead of JD 100 thousand.

Mutual insurance fund covers financing granted by Bank (financing granted from joint investment
account and Al Wakala Bi Al Istithmar accounts (investments portfolio).

D. Subsidiaries expected credit loss

31 December 31 December

2018 2017
JD JD
Al Samaha Funding and Investment Company Ltd. - (Note 7) 485,327 81,514
Al Omariah Schools Company Ltd. - (Note 7) 604,118 448,305
Total 1,089,445 529,819

(31) Paid-In Capital:

The authorized and paid-in capital amounted to JD 180 million as at 31 December 2018 (2017: JD
180 million) consisting of 180 million shares (2017: 180 million shares).
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{32) Reserves:

Statutory reserve:

The accumulated amounts in this account represent the transferred 10% of annual profits before
taxes during the current and previous years, in accordance with Banks Law. This reserve is not
available for distribution to shareholders.

Voluntary reserve:

The accumulated amounts in this account represent the transferred 20% of annual profits before
taxes during the current and previous years and is used for purposes determined by the Board of
Directors. General Assembly is entitled to fully or partially distribute the reserve as dividends.

Restricted reserves are as foflows:

Description JO Nature of Restriction

Statutory reserve 84,018,387 Banks Law

(33)  Retained earnings

The item consists of the following:

31 December 31 December

2018 2017

JD JD
Balance at the beginning of the year 85,577,364 100,123,623
Effect of IFRS (9) adoption (4,540,108) -
Transfer from General Banking Risk Reserve 1,000,000 -
Balance after IFRS (9) adoption 82,037,256 100,123,623
Profit after income tax 49,807,927 54,139,053
Transferred to statutory reserve (7,547,017) (8,100,584)
Transferred to voluntary reserve (7,5632,333) (8,084,728)

Dividends distributed to shareholders
Transferred to capital increase
Balance at the end of the year

Proposed Dividends

(27,000,000)

(22,500,000)
(30,000,000)

85,765,833

85,577,364

Proposed cash dividends to be distributed to shareholders for the year 2018 is 15 % of the paid-in
capital with an amount of JD 27 million (2017: 15% of the paid-in capital with amount of JD 27
million). Propsed stock dividends to be distributed amounted to 11.11% of the paid-in capital
subjected to the approval of the Central Bank of Jordan.
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(34)

Deferred sales revenues

This item consists of the following:

Individuals (Retall):

Murabaha to the purchase orderer
Deferred sales

ljarah Mawsoofa Bil Thimma

Real Estate Flnancing
Corporate:

International Murabaha

Istisna‘a

Murabaha to the purchase orderer
Deferred sales

Small and Medlum Enterprises:
Murabaha to the purchase crderer
Deferred sales

Government and publlc sector

Total

(35)

Financing revenues

This item consists of the following:

Indlviduals (Retail):
Diminishing Musharaka
Small & Medlum Enterprises:

Diminishing Musharaka

Total

Joint Self-financed Total
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
JO JD JD JO JD JO
50,852,499 53,372,815 - 50,852,499 53.372,815
533,958 456,238 533,958 456,238
319,196 252,611 - - 319,196 252,611
36,582,571 36,731,385 8.000 10,000 36,590,571 36,741,385
732.223 123,473 - - 732,223 123,473
68,340 331,267 - - 68,340 331,267
17,469,611 16,602,898 - 17.469.611 16,602,898
275 - - 275 -
8.416.820 8,385,298 - - 8.416,820 8,385,298
1,788 - 1.788
23.815,365 24,801,089 - 23.815,365 24,801,089
138,792.646 141,057,074 8.000 10.000 138.800,646 141,067,074
Joint Self-financed Total
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
JO JO JD JD JD JD
442,805 427,616 4,580 3,737 447385 431,353
- 5,500 - 5,500
442,805 433,116 4,580 3,737 447,385 436,853
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(36) Gain from financial assets at fair value through the joint investment accounts holders'’
equity

This item consists of the following:

Joint
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
JD JD
Dividends income 918,795 995614
Total 918,795 995,614
(37) Gain from financial assets at amortized cost
The item consists of the following:
Joint
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
JD JD
Islamic Sukuk 3,704,657 2,809,042
tslamic banks portfolio revenues 35,386 86,24§
Total 3,740,043 2,895,290

(38) Dividends from subsidiaries and associates

This item consists of the following:

Distributed dividends

Ownership  Distribution 31 December 31 December

percentage percentage 2018 2017

VA / JD JD
Subsidiaries
Al Omariah Schools Company Ltd 99.4 6.0 765,266 -
Associates
Jordanian Center for International Trading Co. 28.4 9.0 86,760 86,760
Islamic Insurance Co. 33.3 8.0 400,000 -
Total 1,252,026 86,760




Jordan Islamic Bank - Public Shareholding Company
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
31 December 2018

(39) Revenues from investments in real estate

This item consists of the following:

Realized gain from investments in real estate

Total

Joint
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
JD JD
1,511,676 797,170
1,511,676 797,170

(40)  Revenues from leased and lijarah Muntahia Bittamleek assets

This item consists of the following:

fjarah Muntahia Bittamleek

Total

(41) Revenues from other investments

The item consists of the following:

Revenue from investment deposits at Islamic financial institutions

Total

58

Joint
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
JD JD

43,075,593 43,535,584

43,075,593 43,535,584

31 December 31 December

2018 2017
JD JD
2,024,904 1,429,855

2,024,904 1,429,855
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{42) Net income of subsidiaries

This item consists of the following:

Revenues

School instalments and transportation

Profit from financial assets

Al Wakala Bi Al Istithmar (Investment portfolio)
Finance revenues

Projects revenues

Other revenues

Total Revenues

Expenses

Administrative expenses
Depreciation

Provision for expected credit loss
Other expenses

Total expenses

Net income

(43) Share of unrestricted investment accounts holders’:

31 December

31 December

2018 2017
JD JD
10,085,865 10,193,213
- 7,800
276,890 225,032
1,389,156 1,233,091
2,347,123 1,843,608
376,691 446,190
14,475,725 13,948,934
(9,826,523)  (9,840,593)
(1,048,911)  (1.043,820)
(17,143) (16,806)
(1,544,154) (599,724)
(12,436,731)  (11,500,943)
2,038,994 2,447,991

This item consists of the following:

Banks and financial institutions
Customers:

Saving accounts

Notice accounts

Term accounts

Total

59

31 December

31 December

2018 2017
JD JD
104,600 10,899
5,330,900 6,767,104
543,300 638,983
45,649,769 46,137,656
51,628,669 53,554,642
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(44) Bank's share of the joint investment accounts revenues as Mudarib and Rab Mal

The item consists of the following:

Bank's share as Mudarib
Bank’s share as fund owner (Rab Mal)

Total

(45) Bank's self- financed revenues

This item consists of the following:

Deferred sales revenues — (Note 34)
Financing revenues ~ (Note 35)
Dividend from financial assets at the fair value through

owner’s equity

Total
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31 December

31 December

2018 2017
JD JD
86,494,507 84,958,387
34,459,563 33,594,388
120,954,070

118,552,775

31 December

31 December

2018 2017

JD JD
8,000 10,000
4,580 3,737
13,384 12,476
25,964 26,213
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(46)

Bank’s share of restricted investment revenues as Mudarib and Wakeel:

This item consists of the following:

Restricted investment revenues
Less: Share of restricted investment

accounts holders’

Net

Al Wakala Bi Al Istithmar revenues
Less: share of Al Wakala Bi Al Istithmar

accounts holders'

Net

Muqarada bonds profits (Investment

portfolio)

Less: share of Mugarada bonds
accounts holders' (Investment portfolio)

Net

Al Wakala Bi Al Istithmar revenues
(Investment portfolio)
L ess: share of Al Wakala Bi Al Istithmar

accounts holders' (Investment portfolio)
Net

Total

Wakeel Mudarib Wakeel Mudarib
31 December 2018 31 December 2017
JD JD JD JD
- 1,263,897 - 831,688
- 222,187 - 137,134
1,928,179 - 383,085 -
(1,205,112) - (239,664) -
723,067 - 143,421 -
8,848,964
- - - (6,636,723)
- - - 2,212,241
18,837,521 - 9,366,411
(16,284,215) - (7,036,386) -
2,553,306 - 2,330,025 -
3,276,373 222,187 2,473,446 2,349,375

61



Jordan Islamic Bank - Public Shareholding Company
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

31 December 2018

(47) Banking services revenues

This item consists of the following:

Letters of credit commissions
Guarantees commissions
Collection bills commission
Transfers commission

Salary transfer commission
Returned cheques commission
Account management commission
Cheques books commission
Foreign currencies cash deposits commission
Brokerage commission

Cheques collection commission
Credit cards commission

Other commissions

Total

(48) Foreign currency gain

This item consists of the following:

Resulting from trading
Resulting from valuation

Total

31 December

31 December

2018 2017
JD JD

703,782 716,914
2,691,319 2,534,260
466,120 473,758
675,938 620,941
4,387,276 4,163,117
1,542,844 2,699,695
960,105 1,320,390
299,592 336,104
83,825 90,539
288,033 308,907
103,743 117,472
5,012,065 4,405,236
1,882,644 1,859,359
19,097,286 19,646,690

Self
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
JD JD
708,851 791,655
858,242 1,244,309
1,567,093 2,035,964
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(49) Other income

The item consists of the following:

31 December 31 December

2018 2017
JD JD
Rents 71,692 71,668
Bonded revenues 380,207 597,038
Postage and telephone 371,640 350,734
Safe box leasing 237,081 196,230
Others 847,233 670,366
Total 1,907,853 1,886,036

(50) Employees expenses

This item consists of the following:

31 December 31 December

2018 2017
JD JD
Salaries, benefits and allowances 31,594,370 29,604,092
Bank's contribution in Social Security 3,739,606 3,545,291
Medical expenses 3,106,973 2,726,603
Training expenses 225,514 241,326
Per diem 169,102 187,700
Meals 156,208 133,480
End of service benefits 1,588,907 743,398
Takaful insurance 237,352 210,844
Total 40,818,032 37,392,734
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(51) Other expenses

This item consists of the following:

Postage and telephone

Printings and stationery

System maintenance and licenses
Credit Cards

Rent

Water, electricity and heating
Repair, maintenance and cleaning
Insurance premiums

Travel and transportation

Legal and consulting fees
Professional fees

Subscriptions and memberships
Donations

Licenses, governmental fees and taxes
Hospitality

Advertising and promotion

Saving accounts rewards

Board committees remunerations
Master card and visa accounts rewards
Board members remunerations
Investor protection fund

Overdraft accounts coverage
Others

Total

(52) Other provisions

The item consists of the following:

End of service indemnity provision
Legal cases held against bank provision
Employees’ vacation provision

Total

64

31 December

31 December

2018 2017

JD JD
1,512,894 1,408,565
1,404,867 1,294,190
3,381,438 2,389,810
2,151,266 1,718,918
2,062,320 1,696,585
1,844,315 2,292,607
1,781,583 1,442,627
809,082 708,297
1,183,072 1,162,892
383,103 231,840
113,770 146,460
723,343 701,519
1,032,074 880,124
839,395 982,452
180,592 148,704
1,582,011 1,727,862
144,650 148,530
84,000 82,600
235,166 223,464
66,160 67,080
8,881 8,027
237,068 487,551
787,692 701,125
22,548,850 20,652,730

31 December

31 December

2018 2017
JD JD
300,000 -
75,000 -
150,000 250,000
525,000 250,000
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(53) Basic earnings per share (EPS)

The item consists of the following:

Profit for the year after income tax (JD)
Weighted average number of shares

Basic earnings per share {(JD/Fils)

(54) Cash and cash equivalents

This item consists of the following:

Cash and balances with Central Banks maturing within
3 months

Add: Balances at banks and financial institutions maturing
within 3 months

Less: Balances at banks and financial institutions maturing

within 3 months

Total

65

31 December

31 December

2018 2017
49,807,927 54,139,053
180,000,000 180,000,000
0.277 0.301

31 December

31 December

2018 2017
JD JD
876,086,318 1,138,666,950
93,915,480 54,124 633
(8,241,356) (5,012,040)
961,760,452 1,187,779,543
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Jordan Islamic Bank - Public Shareholding Company
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
31 December 2018

(57) Al Wakala Bi Al Istithmar

This item consists of the following:

31 December 31 December

2018 2017
JD JD
Al Wakala Bi Al Istithmar accounts — Baraka Group 43,820,455 30,866,592
Al Wakala Bi Al Istithmar accounts — Central Bank of Jordan 18,108,306 15,088,407
Investment in Wakala — Islamic Insurance Company 1,286,609 607,500
Total 63,215,370 46,662,489

- Wakala investments accounts represent cash amounts deposited at the Bank that are
managed and invested in accordance with [slamic Shari’a compliant investment modes agreed
upon with the Muwakkil in exchange of a fump sum or percentage of the invested funds
mentioned in Wakala coniract. Any losses incurred shall be borne by the Muwakkil unless
arising from the Bank's (Wakeel) negligence or misconduct.

- The Bank's fee is 1% - 1.25% annually.

(58) Related parties transactions

A. The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Bank
and the following subsidiaries:

Paid - in Capital

31 December 31 December

Company Name Ownership 2018 2017
JD JD

Al Omariah Schools Company Ltd. 99.4% 12,825,000 12,825,000
Al Samaha Financing and {nvestment Company Ltd. 100% 12,000,000 12,000,000
Future Applied Computer Technology Company Ltd. 100% 5,000,000 5,000,000
Sanabel Al-Khair for Financial Investments Company Ltd. 100% 5,000,000 5,000,000

The Bank entered into transactions with the parent Company, subsidiaries, associates, major
shareholders, board members and senior executive management within the Bank's ordinary
course of business using normal Murabaha rates and commercial commissions. All deferred sales
receivables, financing and ljarah Muntahia Bittamleek granted to related parties are considered
performing and within the first stage.
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B. Below is a summary of transactions with related parties:

Consolidated statement of
financial position items:

Deferred sales receivables

Financing of employees
housing/ Musharaka

Musharaka financing

Deposits

Off consolidated statement
of financial position items:

Guarantees and Letters of credit

Consolidated income

statement items:
Paid expenses
Received revenues
Paid Profits

Related parties Total
Board
members
and Senior 31 31
Parent Executive December December
Company Associates Subsidiaries management 2018 2017
JD JO JD JD JD JD
- 1,684,933 124,332 8,112,302 9,921,567 8,640,763
- - 1,493,978 1,493,978 1,102,934
- - - 1,437,300 1,437,300 612,000
103,367 6,645,277 4,421,245 1,647,542 12,717,431 14,827,998
- 17,480 856,625 1,866,649 2,840,754 3,089,853
31 31
December  December
2018 2017
- 4,923,588 2,070.936 3,800,390 10,794,914 8,112,060
- 109,560 24,411 180,080 314,051 285,914
- 137,110 11,134 12,642 160,886 79,463

Murabaha rate on granted financing ranged between 4% - 5.5% annually as at 31 December 2018

(2017: 4% - 5.5%).

Musharaka profit rate of financing granted to the employees ranged between 2% - 4.8% annually
as at 31 December 2018 (2017: 2% - 4.8%).

Guarantees commission rate ranged between 1% - 4% annually as at 31 December 2018 (2017:
1% - 4%). Letters of credit commission rate ranged between 1/4% - 3/8% quarterly as at 31
December 2018 (2017: 1/4% - 3/8% quarterly).
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C. Summary of the Bank's senior executive management benefits (salaries,
remuneration and other benefits) were as follows:

31 December 31 December

2018 2017
JD JD
Salaries, remunerations and transportation 3,273,462 2,324,280
End of service benefits 212,896 118,787
Total 3,486,358 2,443,067

{59) Fair value of financial instruments

The Bank uses the following order of valuation methods and alternatives to determine and present
the fair value of the financial instruments:

s level1- Quoted market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
e Level2- Valuation techniques for which the inputs are significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable.

e level 3- Valuation techniques for which the inputs are significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable.

The table below illustrate the analysis of the financial instruments measured at fair value according
to the aforementioned order:

31 December 2018 First Level Second Level  Third Level Total
Financial assets at fair value JD JD JD JD
through joint investment
accounts holders’ equity

Financial instruments 19,746,863 - - 19,746,863

31 December 2017
Financial assets at fair value
through joint investment
accounts holders' equity

Financial instruments 21,956,512 - - 21,956,512
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(60) Fair value of financial assets and liabilities not measured at fair value in the
consolidated financial statements

As disclosed in notes (10 and 11), the financial instruments includes unquoted financial assets
amount to JD 22,847,897 which are stated at cost as the Bank cannot reliably determine its fair
value. No indication of impairment exist.

(61) Risk Management

The Bank undertakes the risk management function through a comprehensive risk management
framework approved by the Bank’s Board of Directors. The goal of risk management is to establish
a safe business environment in order to pursue the Bank's strategic objectives by achieving the
following:

1- Maintaining adequate capital against risks.
2- Preserving assets quality.

3- Maintaining appropriate liquidity levels.

4- Effective internal control system.

5- Effective reporting system.

Quantitative and qualitative disclosures:
1. Credit risk:

Credit risk is the risk arising from the borrower inability and/or unwillingness to meet its obligations
including principal and profit as they come due.

The Bank's credit risk management policy comprise the foliowing:

1) Determining a credit risk management strategy.
2) Determining the acceptable level of credit risk.

3) Determining the credit limits and maximum level of credit concentration.

Limits of Acceptable Risk:

Our Bank determines the acceptable level of risks and is approved by the Board of Directors, and
the actual level is monitored and compared to the acceptable level of risk on regular intervals and
is considered one of the most important elements of governance in the risk management process,
and is in line with the business model adopted by our Bank.
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4)

Determining credit risk mitigating technigques and credit concentrations, which include the
following:

- Diversification of credit facilities among various economic sectors.

- Setting a clear credit and investment limits that are consistent with Central Bank of Jordan
regulations.

- Usage of various credit risk mitigating techniques.

- Setting a credit authority matrix.

Credit approval, monitoring, and follow up:

The credit application is prepared by the business department whereas the credit department
performs a due diligence analysis. The credit application is then presented to the authorized
credit committee for approval to ensure the achievement of segregation of duties.

Corporates, Small and Medium Enterprises (SMEs) and high net worth individuals are
evaluated through internal credit rating system "Moody's”, which is a two dimensions rating

system; Obligor Risk Rating (ORR) and Faciiity Risk Rating (FRR).

Obligor Risk Rating (ORR) represents the credit worthiness of a customer which reflects the
Probability of Default (PD).

Faciltity Risk Rating (FRR) represents the quality of credit risk mitigating techniques provided
by the customer, which reflects the Loss Given Default (LGD).
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1. Credit risk exposure (net of impairment provision and expected credit loss, deferred and

suspended revenues, and before collaterals and other risk mitigation factors)

Items within the consolidated
statement of financial position:

Balances with central banks

Balances with banks and banking
institutions

Investment accounts with banks and
financial Institutions

Deferred sales receivables and
other receivables:

individuals

Real estate

Companies:
Corporate
Small and Medium Enterprises (SMEs)

Government and public sector

Financing
Musharaka:
Individuals
Real estates
Corporate

Off consolidated statement of
financial position items:

Guarantees

Letters of credit

Acceptances

Unutilized limits-direct

Unutilized limits-indirect

Total

Collaterals and other credit risk mitigation techniques against Credit Exposures:

Joint Self-financed
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2018 2017 2018 2017
JD JD JD JD
- - 716,781,566 1,002,623,418
52,412,097 13,174,135 41,503,303 40,950,498
17,642,298 21,979,000 - -
598,698,943 625,126,459 12,385,356 9,537,756
384,168,659 388,907,787 137,822 180,000
408,360,661 355,476,296 99,673 49,774
128,452,109 124,865,361 2,525,446 2,068,239
527,673,810 521,256,900 3,004,464 3,142,004
. - 44,085 44,085
30,337,806 29,886,256 209,578 238,016
2,112,320 812,000 - -
- - 116,550,843 110,757,863
13,226,229 17,375,489 9,414,522 24,122,621
- - 3,308,413 3,650,962
108,094,793 115,786,180 - -
- - 70,352,098 77,137,026
2,272,179,725  2,214,645,863 976,317,359 1,274,502,262

The quantity and quality of the required collaterals depends on the credit risk assessment of the
counterparty. It is also possible to adjust or reduce ihe risk exposure related to the debtor,
concerned party or any other obligor using the credit risk mitigation techniques applicable in the
[slamic banks. These include (asset mortgage, third party guaraniee, earnest money, cash

margins, and shares mortgage).

Credit risk mitigations against credit exposure in the aforementioned table were as follows:

- Cash margins
- Bank guarantees
- Real estate collaterals

Vehicles and machinery mortgages
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Jordan Islamic Bank - Public Shareholding Company
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
31 December 2018

Scheduled deferred sales receivables and other receivables and financing:

These represent receivables/finances which have been classified as non performing and were set
aside in terms of the non performing receivables/finances in accordance with a legal scheduling
agreement and re-classified as watch list or performing receivables/finances with total amount of
JD 29,240,352 as at 31 December 2018 against JD 36,466,382 as at 31 December 2017,

Restructured deferred sales receivables and other receivables and financing:

Restructuring means rearranging receivables/finances in terms of amending the instalments or
extending the term of receivables/finances, deferring some instalments or extending the grace
period, etc. and reclassifying these receivables/finances as watch list with total of JD 2,855,662 as
at 31 December 2018 against JD 2,158,775 at 31 December 2017.

Sukuk:
The following table illustrate Sukuk rating presented within the financial assets at fair value

through the joint investment accounts holders’ equity and financial assets at amortized cost
according to external rating agencies:

31 December 2018

investment at

fair value
through joint
investment
Credit rating Financial assets accounts
Rating agency at amortized cost _holders interest Total
JD JD
A S&P 4,591,742 - 4,591,742
B- S&P 178,626,005 - 178,626,005
B+ S&P 2,788,008 - 2,788,008
CCC- S&P 5,667,624 5,667,624
Total 191,673,379 - 191,673,379
31 December 2017
Investment at
fair value
through joint
investment
Credit rating Financial assets accounts
Rating agency at amortized cost holders interest Total
JD JD
A S&P 456,523 - 456,523
B+ S&P 67,743,300 - 67,743,300
BB- S&P 2,811,185 - 2,811,185
CCC+ S&P 7,097,799 - 7,097,799
Total 78,_198,821 - 78,108,807
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Jordan Islamic Bank - Public Shareholding Company

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

31 December 2018

3- Concentration of credit exposure according to geographical area were as follows:

Balances with central banks

Balances at banks and
financial institutions

Joint investment accounts
at banks and financial
institutions

Deferred sales and other
receivables and financing:

Individuals

Real estate financing

Companies:

Large corporates

Small and Medium
Enterprises (SMEs)

Government and public sector

Sukuk:

Within financial assets at

amortized cost

Total as at 31December 2018

Total as at 31 December 2017

Other
Inside the Middle East Other
Kingdom Countries Europe Asia” America  Countries Total
JD JO JD JD JD JD JO
716,781,566 - - - - - 716,781,566
1,560 46,402,508 16,018,062 797,793 - 30,695,567 93,815,490
- 17,642,298 - - - - 17,642,298
611,128,384 - - - - - 611,128,384
414,853,965 - - - - - 414,853,965
348,037,246 51,410,584 11,124,824 - - - 410,572,654
130,977,655 - - - - - 130,977,555
530,678,274 - - - - - 530,678,274
173,009,567 18,663,812 - - - - 191,673,379

2,925,468,117

134,119,202 27,142,886 797,793

- 30,695,567 3,118,223,565

3,102,549,339

60,136,191

26,488,252 711,226

- 28,086,324 3,217,971,332

*  Except for Middle East Countries
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Jordan Islamic Bank - Public Shareholding Company
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

31 December 2018

4- Concentration of credit exposure according to economic sector were as follows:

Government
and public
Financial Industrial Commercial Real estate  Agriculture Shares  Individuals sector Total
JO JD JO JD JO JD JO JD JO
Balances with
central banks - - 716,781,566 716,781,566
Balances at banks
and financial
institutions 93,915.490 - - - 93,915,490
Investment
accounts at banks
and financial
institutions 17,642,298 - - - - - - 17,642,298
Deferred sales and
other receivables
and financing 126,984,539 404,379,733 414,853,365 25,468,983 - 595,845,338 530,678,274 2,098,210,832
Sukuk:
Within financial
assets at amortized
cost - 191,673,379 - 191,673,379
Total as at 31
December 2018 111,557,788 126,984,539 596,053,112 414,853,965 25,468,983 595,845,338 1,247,459,840 3,118,223,565
Total as at 31
December 2017 76,103,633 110,188,327 437,542,427 419,212,059 28,042,830 _ = 619,859,674 1,527,022,322 3,217,971,332

2, Liquidity Risks

Liguidity risk is defined as the Bank's inability to provide the required liquidity to cover its
obiigations at their respective due dates. Bank manage such risks throughout the following:

Analyze liquidity (maturity gaps).

Diversifing sources of financing.

O RN

concentration risk.

Maintaining reasonable liquidity to cover outgoing cash flows.

Establishing the Assets and Liabilites committee .
Distribution of financing among various sectors and geographical areas to mitigate

6. Liquidity management is based on natural and emergency circumstances including using and
analyzing assets and various financial ratios maturities.
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Jordan Islamic Bank - Public Shareholding Company
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

31 December 2018

First: The below table summarize the maturity profile of the Bank’s liabilities based or
contractual undiscounted repayment obligations at the date of the consolidated financial

statements:
Less than 1103 306 6 months to 1103 More than Without
1 month months months 1 year years 3 years maturity Total

31 December 2018 Jo JD JO JO JO JD JO JO
Liabilities;
Due to banks and

financial institutions 8,241,356 - 8.241,356
Customers’ current

accounts 389,416.878 154,522,806 122,242,564 88,962,322 92,959,050 216,904,450 - 1,076,008,070
Cash margins 12,010,782 5,472,796 4,956,132 4,719,351 5,415,347 12,635.810 - 45,210,218
Other provisions - - - 15,029,623 15,029,623
Income tax provision 8,883,749 13,475,624 - - 22,459.373
Deferred tax liabilities 249,092 973,930 1,460.894 2.517.854 5,201,770
Investment risk fund 1,382,304 - 2,073,457 - 31,654,580 35,110,341
Other liabilities 19,854,683 6,756,610 1,769,897 11,798,342 2,383,584 8,300,438 50,863,534
Unrestricted investment

accounts holders’ equity 304,981,852 216,042,938 257,086,934 336,269,413 418,376,742 976,212,400 153,866 2,509,124,148
Total 755,120,806 382,795,151 401,604,608 443,723,358 520,595,597 1,205,752.660 57,658,361 3,767,248,431
Total assets {according

to expected maturity

date) 1,171,868,413 155,473,261 212,828,177 476,384,012 883,674,137 1,077,485,043 182,919,167 4,160,642,210

Less than 1103 306 6 months to 1103 More than Without
1 month months months 1 year years 3 years maturity Total

31 December 2017 JO JD JD JD JD JD JD JD
Liabilities:
Due to banks and

financial institutions 5.012.040 - 5,012,040
Customers’ current

accounts 418,549,125 161,761,818 127.930,308 94,098,794 97,613,107 227.763,917 - 1,127,717,067
Cash margins 12,275,203 5,703,808 5,235,944 5,091,195 5,880,248 13,720,579 47,908,977
Other provisions - - 6,750.000 6,750,000
Income tax provision 9,504,386 - 14,256,580 23,760,968
Deferred tax liabilities 570,738 - 805.375 1,208,063 - 2,203,116 4,787,292
Investment risk fund 1,498,413 2,247 619 36,350,487 40,096,519
Other liabilities 17,441 584 6,311,095 1,824,752 9.481,624 2,243,545 8,199,470 45,502.070
Unrestricted investment

accounts holders’ equity 301,080,476 218,171,695 260,141,089 340,857,758 424,412,880 990,296,720 165,489 2,535,126,117
Total 765,931,985 391,948,416 411,636,300 450,334,746 531,357,843 1,231,781,216 53,668,562 3,836,659,048
Total assets (according

to expected maturity

date) 1,385,285,782 175,081,466 208,150,377 483,836,480 983,742,909 816,709,567 158,771,085 4,211,617.666
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Jordan Islamic Bank - Pubtic Shareholding Company
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
31 December 2018

Second: Off consolidated financial position items:

Letters of credit and acceptances
Guarantees

Unutilized limits-direct

Unutilized limits-indirect

Capital liabilities

Total

3. Market Risks:

31 December

31 December

2018 2017
Up to one year Up to one year
JD JD
25,949,164 45,149,072
116,550,843 110,757,863
109,094,793 115,786,180
70,352,098 77,137,026

3,870,308 3,317,507
325,817,206 352,147,648

Market risk is the risk of loss resulting from fluctuations in the market price, which retates to equity
instruments in the trading book, exchange rates, market rate of return, commodity and inventory
prices, the Bank seeks to mitigate these risks throughout the following:

1)  Diversifying and distributing investments among various sectors and geographical areas.
2)  Analyzing rate of returns trends and expected exchange rates and investments.
3) Establishing limits to investments on the level of the couniry, currency, market, instrument

and counter party.

4)  Adapting the currency positions in accordance with Central Bank of Jordan regulations.

The Bank is using the sensitivity analysis to assess the market risks for each type of risk in
addition to Value at Risk "VaR" to assess the change in equity price risk.
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Jordan Islamic Bank - Public Shareholding Company
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

31 December 2018

A. Rate of return risks

Rate of return risk resuits from the decline in the rate of return on investments compared to the
local market increase in the rate of return “interest” and the Bank's inability to increase the rate of
return on granted facilities with fixed rate of return (Murabaha).

The Bank manages these risks through out the following:

1) Managing the rate of return gaps and cost of assets and liabilities according to various

maturity dates.

2) Studying the investments return trends.

Jordanian Dinars

Jordanian Dinars

Jordanian Dinars

Jordanian Dinars

31 December 2018

Change Investment
(increase) in Sensitivity accounts
rate of return (profits and Owner’s equity holders' equity

(1%) losses) sensitivity sensitivity
JD JD JD JD
7,148,966 - 4,509,300 2,639,666
31 December 2018

Change Investment
(decrease) in Sensitivity accounts
rate of return (profits and Owner's equity holders’ equity

(1%) losses) sensitivity sensitivity
JD JO JD JD
(7,148,966) - (4,509,300) (2,639,666)
31 December 2017

Change investment
(increase) in Sensitivity accounts
rate of return {(profits and Owner's equity holders’ equity

(1%) losses) sensitivity sensitivity
JD JD JD JD
7,066,306 - 4,380,736 2,685,570
31 December 2017

Change Investment
(decrease) in Sensitivity accounts
rate of return (profits and Owner's equity holders' equity

(1%) losses) sensitivity sensitivity
JO JD JD JD
(7.066,306) - (4,380,736) (2,685,570)
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Jordan Islamic Bank - Public Shareholding Company
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
31 December 2018

B. Foreign currency risks

Foreign currency risk is the risk arising from the change in the foreign currency prices that the
Bank maintains. Foreign currencies are managed on the basis of spot trading and foreign
currencies positions are monitored on a daily basis against the approved limit for each currency,
since the Bank's policy in managing foreign currencies, is to clear customer's current positions
and cover required positions according to customer’'s needs.

Bank's investment policy stipulate that the maximum limit of the foreign currencies positions shall
not exceed 15% of the total owner's equity or 50% of the bank's total liabilities in foreign
currencies, whichever is greater (at a maximum limit of 5% of the owner’s equity for each currency
except for US Dollars) in order to cover the customers’ needs in terms of letters of credit, transfers
and bills under collection and not for speculation or trading purposes.

31 December 2018

Change in the Impact on Impact on

exchange rate profits and owner's
Currency Net Position (5%) losses equity
UsD 26,864,145 - - -
Euro 200,097 10,005 6,503 3,397
GBP 43,870 2,194 1,426 -
JPY 10,941 547 356 -
Other Currencies 1,614,614 80,731 52,475 -

31 December 2017

Change in the Impact on impact on

exchange rate profits and owner's
Currency Net Position (5%) losses equity
usD 11,033,029 - - -
Euro 175,364 8,768 5,699 1,390
GBP 116,145 5,807 3,775 -
JPY 18,021 901 586 -
Other Currencies 320,833 16,042 10,427 -
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Jordan Islamic Bank - Public Shareholding Company

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
31 December 2018

Concentration of foreign currency risks:

2018 UsD Euro GBP JPY Others Total
Assets:
Cash and balances with central banks 143,946,367 3,270,502 2,503.037 - 973,873 150,693,779
Cash at banks and financial institutions 78,027,913 12,508,504 879.637 70,073 2,518,191 94,004,318
Investment accounts at banks and financial institutions 17,725,000 - - - - 17,725,000
Deferred sales receivables and other receivables 60.361,916 3,741,728 1,045,519 - 3,880,941 69,030,104
Financial assets at fair value through the owner’s

equity — self financed 821,758 81,886 - - 903,644
Financial assets at fair value through joint investment

accounts holders’ equity 1,545,620 - - - 1,545,620
Financial assets at amortized cost 22,013,793 - - - - 22,013,793
Other assets 154,264 - - - - 154,264
Total Assets 324,696,631 19,602,620 4,428,193 70,073 7,373,005 356,070,522
Liabllitles:
Duse to banks and financial institutions 3,949,088 43,679 - 7.319 4,000,088
Cash margins 4,007,034 137,090 9,356 - - 4,153,480
Current accounts 57,466,714 4,623,672 1.426,381 104 1,177,739 64,694,610
Unrestricted investment accounts 232,103,348 14,547,682 2,948,586 59,028 4,554,573 254,213,117
Other liabilities 206,302 50,500 - - 18,760 275,562
Total llabitltles 297,732,486 19,402,523 4,384,323 59,132 5,758,381 327,336,855
Net concentration in the consofidated financial

posilion statement - 2018 26,864,145 200,097 43,870 10,841 1,614,614 28,733,667
Contingent Liabilities — off consolidated statement

of financial position item — 2018 21,156,222 2,272,915 44 612 1,814,675 25,288,424
2017
Total Assets 270,748,043 20,989,105 4,383,592 75,448 7,554,835 303,751,023
Total Llabllities 259,715,014 20,813,741 4,267,447 57,427 7,234,002 292,087,631
Net concentration in the consolidated financial

position statement - 2017 11,033,029 175,364 116,145 18,021 320,833 11,663,392
Contingent Liabilities - off consolidated statement

of financial position item — 2017 28,226,146 2,759,577 - - 848,710 31,834,433




Jordan Islamic Bank - Public Shareholding Company
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
31 December 2018

C. Equity price risks

Equity price risks result from a change in the fair value of investments in equity. The Bank seeks
to manage these risks through diversifying investments in various geographical areas and
economic sectors.

Impact on
Impact on Impact on investment
Change in losses and owner's account
index (5%) profits equity holders' equity
JO JD JD JD
2018
Amman Stock Exchange Index 782,780 - - 508,807
2017
Amman Stock Exchange index 542 351 - 521,005 300,307

D. Commodity risks

Commodity risks arise from the fluctuations in the value of marketable assets. These risks are
related to the current and future fluctuations and market values of specific assets. The Bank is
exposed to fluctuations of fully paid commodity prices after the commencement of Salam
contracts and to the fluctuations in the remaining value of the leased assets at the end of the
lease term.

4, Compliance risks

Compliance risks represents sanctions on matters related to legal or requlatory or financial losses
or reputational risks which the Bank might face as a result of non compliance with laws,
regulations, standards and proper financial practices. The primary non compliance risks are legal
and regulatory sanctions risks, reputational risks, financial losses risks, financial crimes risks, anti-
money laundry and fraud and corruption risks.

The Bank seeks to limit these risks through is Compliance Control Department that is concerned
with reviewing the requirements of regulatory bodies and ensuring their application on the Bank’s
internal procedures and policies throughout setting the compliance strategy and guidelines and
establishing the policies related to anti-money laundry and establishing policies and procedures
related to laws, regulations, internal and external instructions and holding the necessary training
courses.
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Jordan [slamic Bank - Public Shareholding Company
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
31 December 2018

5. Operational Risks

Operational risks are the risks of loss arising from inadequacy or failure in internal operations,
personnel or systems, or from external events. This includes legal risk and islamic Shari'a non-
compliance risk and excludes strategic and reputational risks. The Bank seeks to limit these risks
throughout the following:

The existence of documented policies and procedures that mitigates the possibility of such
operational risks.

Establishing a Business Continuity Plan (BCP) to mitigate exposure and discontinuity incidents
faced by the Bank and a recovery plan.

Legal department reviews all contracts and related documents used by the Bank.

In coordination with the information security department, internal audit department and the
internal control department, the Information Technology department establishes the necessary
policies and procedures related to maintaining the information confidentiality in the Bank and
managing the access rights to the Bank's systems.

6. Reputational Risks

Reputational risks is being viewed by the Bank as negative impression on the Bank's reputation
which might lead to potential losses in the sources of funding and loss of customers to competitive
banks.

The Bank seeks to limits these risks throughout a set of policies and procedures to enhance the
customers’ confidenceh and providing a good banking services and maintaining banking
confidentiality and avoid undertaking illegal acts or financing unfaverable sectors and provides
suitable information security controls.

7. Stress testing:

Application methodology:

Our bank stress testing methodology includes identifying all types of risks our bank may face
under stressful conditions, and assessing the Bank's ability to withstand these risks according to
stress scenarios.

Role and Integrity of stress tests with risk management governance, risk culture and
capital planning:

The role of the Board of Directors and senior management is to establish test objectives, identify
the scenarios required for each type of risk, and assess the resuits and needed actions based on
the results, especially the ones which have an integral role in the decision-making (capital
planning).
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Jordan Islamic Bank - Public Shareholding Company
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
31 December 2018

Scenario selection mechanism, including key assumptions related to macroeconomic
variables:

The Bank carries out sensitivity scenarios analysis determined based on the Central Bank of
Jordan instructions in addition to other scenarios based on the assumption and proposal of the
Bank to measure the degree of tolerance.

The mechanism of using the tests results in decision making at the appropriate
administrative level, including the strategic decisions of the Board of Directors and the
senior executive management:

The Risk Management Department prepares a summary of the results of the stress tests and
raises them to the concerned parties, indicating the final impact of the tests within specific grades
(low / medium / high) and whom is authorized party to make related decisions.

Governance application of stress tests:
The Bank identifies parties related to stress testing (Board of Directors / Risk Management
Committee, Assets and Liabilities Committee, Risk Management Department, Business and other
supervisory departments) and their respective respansibility for achieving complementarity and
judgment in carrying out the required tests.
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Jordan Islamic Bank - Public Shareholding Company

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
31 December 2018

2. Distribution of exposures according to the stages of classification in accordance with

IFRS 9:

Financial
Industrial
Commercial
Real estate
Agriculture
Shares
Individuals
Government
and public
sector
Others

Total

Stage 1 Stage 2
Individual Collective Individual Collective Stage 3 Total
JD JD JO JD JD JD

904,152,990 - 7.090,000 - 1,818,373 913,061,363
48,870,156 7.887.736 85,098,767 1,016,902 10,125,919 162,999,480
182,021,993 90,932,522 160,725,872 6,062,815 61,342,589 501,085,891
42 621,364 292,095,252 88,425,126 8,034,473 29,851,679 461,127,894
26,679,793 2,366,525 2,927,672 64,814 2,259,230 34,208,034
23,050,389 511,704,381 3,899,910 16,265,363 15,941,790 570,861,833
703,679,494 - - - - 703,679,494
84,447,106 - 82,717,534 3,927,841 21,402,480 192,494,961
2,015,523,285 904,986,416 440,884,981 35,372,208 142,842,060 3,539,608,950
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Jordan Islamic Bank - Public Shareholding Company
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
31 December 2018

2. Distribution of exposures according to the stages of classification in accordance with

IFRS 9:

Inside the
Kingdom

Other Middle
East Countries

Europe

Asia

Africa

America

Other countries

Total

Stage 1 Stage 2
Individual Collective Individual Collective Stage 3 Total
JD JD JD JD JD JD

1,828,153,422 904,986,416 433,794,981 35,372,208 141,023,687 3,343,330,714
120,798,263 - - - - 120,798,263
29,861,870 - 7,090,000 - - 37,051,870
3,159,987 - - - - 3,159,987
2,754,176 - - - 1,818,373 4,572,549
30,685,567 - - - - 30,695,567
2,015,523,285 904,986,416 440,884,981 35,372,208 142,842,060 3,539,608_,950
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Jordan Islamic Bank - Public Shareholding Company
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
31 December 2018

(63) Segment information

A. Information about the Bank’s activities
The Bank is organized for administrative purposes based on the reports submitted to the General
Manager and the chief decision maker into four main business sectors:

Retail accounts: These encompass following up on the unrestricted investment accounts,
deferred sales receivables and other financing and banking services related to individuals.

Corporate accounts: These encompass following up on the unrestricted investment accounts,
deferred sales receivables and other financing and banking services related to the institutions.

Investment in assets: This includes investing in real estate and leasing.

Treasury: This includes trading services and managing the Bank's funds.
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Jordan Isfamic Bank - Public Shareholding Company
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

31 December 2018

B. Geographical Distribution Information:

This sector represents the geographical distribution of the Bank's activities. The Bank undertakes
its activities primarily inside the Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan.

The below table illustrate the distribution of the Bank’s revenues, assets and capital expenditures
according to the geographical area and the internal policy of the Bank based on the method of
measurement and as viewed by the General Manager and the chief decision makers:

Inside the Kingdom Outside the Kingdom Total
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
JO JO JD JD JD JD
Total revenues 213,656,966 216,787,134 4,198,278 2,861,053 217,855,244 219,648,187
Total assets 3,967,886,762 3,907,867,707 182,755,448 303,749,959 4,160,642,210  4,211617,666
Capital expenditures 13,488,619 13,654,927 - - 13,488,619 13,654,827

(64) Capital management

The Bank’s capital consists of the paid-in capital, statutory reserve, voluntary reserve, general
banking risks reserves, fair value reserves and retained earnings.

The Bank achieves its capital objectives throughout the following:

- Achieving a satisfactory return on capital without affecting the financial stability of the Bank
and achieving acceptable return on owner's equity.

- Achieving the required level of capital according to Basel Committee requirements and the

supervisory bodies instructions.

- Providing an adequate capital to expand the granting of financing and large investments in
consistency with the Central Bank of Jordan regulations as well as facing any future risks.
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Jordan Islamic Bank - Public Shareho!ding Company
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
31 December 2018

Capital adequacy ratio was calculated as at 31 December 2018 in accordance with Central 8ank
of Jordan instruction number (72/ 2018) dated 4 February 2018 and in accordance with standard

number (15) issued by Islamic Financial Services Board:

31 December

31 December

2018 2017
Thousands Thousands
JD JD

Common Equity Tier ! 361,187 343,025
Paid-in capital 180,000 180,000
Statutory reserve 84,018 76,471
Voluntary reserve 38,234 30,702
Retained earnings 62,766 58,577
Accumulated change in full fair value 1,007 -
Interim profits after tax, less expected dividiends to be distributed. - -
50% of Bank’s share from investments in banks and other financial
institutions capital - (247)
50% of Bank's share from investment in insurance companies - (930)
Intangible Assets (2,299) (1,548)
10% of less of investments in Banks, financial institutions and Takaful

companies capital, (494) .
10% or more of investments in Banks, finanical institutions and Takaful

companies capital, beyond unified regulatory scope (2,045) -
Additional Tier |
Additional Tier Il 13,991 14,941
Fair value reserve of the financial assets at fair value through owners equity - 546
Bank's share from the fair value reserve of the financial assets at fair value

through joint investment accounts holders’ equity - 37
Bank's share from the the investment risks fund surpius 13,881 10,550
General banking risks reserve / self - 1,000
Bank's share from the general banking risks reserve / joint - 3,985
50% of the Bank's share from investments in banks' capitals and other

financial institutions = (247)
50% of the Bank's share from investment in insurance companies - (930)
Total regulatory capital 375,178 357,966
Risk Weighted Assets (RWA) 1,646,641 1,556,269
Common Equity Tier | Ratio 21.93% 22.04%
Additional Tier | Ratio - -
Tier | Ratio 21.93% 22.04%
Tier Il Ratio 0.85% 0.86%
Capital Adequacy Ratio 22.78% 23.00%

- Financial leverage percentage has reached 17.26% as of 31 December 2018.
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Jordan Islamic Bank - Public Shareholding Company
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

31 December 2018

(65) Accounts managed for customers

Accounts managed for customers amounted to JD 456,938,169 as at 31 December 2018
compared to JD 454,007,731 as at 31 December 2017. These accounts are not presented within

the Bank's assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial statements.

(66) Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities

The table below summarizes the expected maturity of the Bank's assets and liabilities. The
maturities of assets and liabilities have been determined according to when they are expected to

be recovered or settled.

Assets:

Cash and balances with central banks

Balances at banks and financia) institutions

Unrestricted investment accounts at banks and
financial institutions

Deferred sales receivables and other receivables —Net

liarah Muntahia Bittamleek assets — Net

Financing - Net

Financial Assets at fair value through owner's equity -
self financed

Financial assets at fair value through- joint investment
accounts holders' equity

Financial assets at amortized cost

Investments in associates

Investment in real estate

Al Qard Al Hasan — Net

Property and equipment- Net

Intangible assets — Net

Other assets

Total assets

Liabilities and unrestricted investment accounts
holders’' equity:

Due to banks and financial institutions

Customers’ current and on demand accounts

Cash margins

Accounts payable

Other provisions

Income tax provision

Deferred tax liabilities

Other liabilities

Unrestricted investment accounts

Fair value reserve

Investment accounts holders' reserve in subsidiaries
and associates

Non-controlling interests

Investment risks fund

Deferred tax liabilities

Income tax provision of investment risks fund

Total liabilities and unrestricted investment accounts

and hoiders’ equity
Net
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31 December 2018

Within More than
1 year iyear Total
JD JD JD
876,086,318 - 876,086,318
93,915,490 - 93,915,490
- 17,642,298 17,642,298
897,081,815 1,156,699,371 2,053,781,286
43,167,107 562,634,655 605,801,762
5,114,799 27,588,990 32,703,788
9,519,618 1,173,176 10,692,694
29,789,320 6,805,440 36,594,760
13,282,179 178,381,200 191,673,379
6.266,401 2,088,800 8,355,201
25,275,972 101,103,889 126,379,861
7,375,577 4,350,180 11,725,757
- 83,311,212 83,311,212
- 2,289,136 2,299,136
9,679,267 - 9,679,267

2,016,563,863

2,144,078,347

4,160,642,210

8,241,356
766,144,570
27,159,061
400,227

22,459,373
322,424
24,442 317
1,114,381,138
1,498,805

13,838,183

900,598
3,455,761

309,863,500
18,051,157

15,029,623

520,602
764,453
1,394,689,142
5,612,830

4,306,719
153,866
31,654,580
3,458,146

8,241,356
1,076,008,070
45,210,218
400,227
15,029.623
22,459,373
843,026
25,206,770
2,508,970,280
7,111,835

18,144,902
163,866
31,654,580
4,358,744
3,455,761

1,983,243,813

1,784,004,618

3,767,248,431

33,320,050

360,073,729

393,393,779
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Assets:

Cash and balances with central banks

Balances at banks and financial institutions

Unrestricted investment accounts at banks and financial

institutions

Deferred sales receivables and other receivables —Net

ljarah Muntahia Bittamleek assets — Net

Financing - Net

Financial Assets at fair value through owner's equity —
self financed

Financial assets at fair value through- joint investment
accounts holders' equity

Financial assets at amortized cost

Investments in associates

Investment in real estate

Al Qard Al Hasan — Net

Property and equipment- Net

Intangible assets — Net

Other assets

Total assets

Liabilities and unrestricted investment accounts
holders' equity:

Due to banks and financial institutions

Customers' current and on demand accounts

Cash margins

Accounts payable

Other provisions

{ncome tax provision

Deferred tax liabilities

Other liabilities

Unrestricted investment accounts

Fair value reserve

Investment accounts holders’ reserve in subsidiaries
and associates

Non-controlling interests

Investment risks fund

Deferred tax liabilities

Income tax provision of investment risks fund

Total liabilities and unrestricted investment accounts

and holders’ equity
Net
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31 December 2017

Within More than

1 year 1 year Total

JD JD JD
1,138,666,950 - 1,138,666,850
54,124,633 - 54,124,633
4,254,000 17,725,000 21,979,000
925,026,687 1,096,586,354 2,021,613,041
43,940,959 546,903,476 590,844,435
4,147,964 26,832,393 30,980,357
9,502,891 1,025,934 10,528,825
17,889,952 19,494,203 37,384,155
16,728,577 61,380,230 78,108,807
8,383,116 8,383,116
24,042,480 96,169,923 120,212,403
5,080,294 3,907,241 8,997,535
- 78,028,966 78,028,966
- 1,548,078 1,548,078
8,978,718 1,238,647 10,217,365

2,252,394,105

1,959,223,561

4,211,617,666

5,012,040
802,340,044
28,306,150
812,999

23,760,966

18,801,867
1,120,251,027
2,247,987

13,196,202

1,376,113
3,746,032

325,377,023
19,600,827

6,750,000

650,528
567,804
1,414,709,603
5,435,861

4,438,658
165,487
36,350,487
2,761,343

5,012,040
1,127,717,067
47,906,977
812,999
6,750,000
23,760,966
650,528
19,369,671
2,534,960,630
7,683,848

17,634,860
165,487
36,350,487
4,137,456
3,746,032

2,019,851,427

1,816,807,621

3,836,659,048

232,542,678

142,415,940

374,958,618
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(67)

Contractual Commitments and Contingent Liabilities (Off consolidated statement of

financial position)

A. Contingent credit commitments
31 December

31 December

2018 2017
JD JD
Letters of credit 22,640,751 41,498,110
Acceptances 3,308,413 3,650,962
Guarantees: 116,550,843 110,757,863
Payment 36,218,249 35,185,393
Performance 50,780,122 46,648,666
Others 29,552,472 28,923,804
Unutilized Limits/ Direct 109,094,793 115,786,180
Unutilized Limits/ Indirect 70,352,098 77,137,026
Total 321,946,898 348,830,141

B. Contractual commitments
31 December

31 December

2018 2017
JD JD
Property, equipment and softwares contracts 3,870,308 3,317,507
Total 3,870,308 3,317,507
The above contractual commitments mature within one year.
C. Indirect facilities expected credit loss:
1. Cumulative movement on indirect facilities as of 31 December 2018:
Stage 1 Stage 2
Collective Individual Coliective Individual Stage 3 Total
JD JD JD JD JD JD
Balance at the
beginning of the year 92,089,619 41,346,779 1,650,287 207,935,613 5,807,843 348,830,141
New exposures during
the year 65,734,073 102,148,597 3,680,259 9,122,788 3,177,030 183,872,747
Matured exposures (76,954,935) (21,438,028) (668,621) (106,467,650) (5,226,758) (210,755,990)
Transferred to stage 1 4,470,978 63,108,309 (4,073,672) (63,106,309) (397,3086) -
Transferred to stage 2 (1,315,543) (33,102,608) 1,337,855 34,999,119 (1,918,623) -
Transferred to stage 3 (863,769) (601,035) (173,386) (962,331) 2,600,521
Adjustments - - - - - -
Wiritten off facilities - - - - - -
Adjustments from
exchange rates effect
Balance at the end of
the year 83,160,423 151,460,014 1,762,522 81,521,230 4,042,709 321,946,898
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D. Cumulative movement on the expected credit loss for indirect facilities as of 31 December 2018:

Stage 1 Stage 2
Collective Individual Collective Individual Stage 3 Total
JD JD JD JD JD JO

Balance at the beginning of the
year 1,164,621 284,281 10,888 2,809,330 4,272,949 8,542,069
Expected credit loss on

new exposures during the year 620,155 1,410,250 120,256 540,711 2,859,327 5,550,899
Expected credit loss from

matured exposures (490,182)  (542,362) (15,945)  (1,649,452)  (3,476,944) (6,174.885)
Transferred to stage 1 57,290 238,952 (54,527) (238,952) (2,763) -
Transferred to stage 2 (9.587) (476,715) 9,683 496,129 (19.510) -
Transferred to stage 3 (437,258)  (373,242) (56,831) (626,637) 1,494,068
Impact on ending balance

provision due to change

in staging classification - - -
Adjustments - - - - -
Written off facilities -
Adjustments from exchange

rates effect - - - - . -
Balance at the end of the year 905,039 541,164 13,424 1,331,129 5,127,127 7,917,883

(68) Lawsuits filed against the Bank

The lawsuits filed against the Bank (self) amounted to JD 10,369,384 as of 31 December 2018
with required provision of JD 49,166 (provision booked amounted to JD 75,000) compared to JD
10,340,537 as of 31 December 2017 with a provision of JD 10,925. The lawsuits filed against the
Bank (joint) as of 31 December 2018 amounted to JD 10,051,818 with a provision of JD 64,261
compared to JD 2,458,474 as of 31 December 2017 with a provision of JD 192,418.

The Bank's management and its legal advisor believe that any obligations that may arise from the
lawsuits against joint investments will be recognized within the investment risk fund, while the
lawsuits against the Bank (self) will be covered by the established provision.

(69) Recently issued Islamic accounting standard

Accounting and Auditing Organization for Islamic Financiat Institutions (AAIOFI) has issued the
Financial Accounting Standard 30 “Impairment, credit losses and onerous commitments”. The
standard specifies the accounting treatment of impairment and credit losses for financing and
investments and onerous commitments in the Islamic financial institutions. The standard’s
requirements related to credit losses are highly similar to the requirements of International
Financial Reporting Standard 9 (IFRS 9). The standard is effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2020, and early adoption is permiited.
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Both the impairment provision has been calculated in accordance with Central Bank of Jordan
instructions No. (47/2009) on 10 December 2009 and the expected credit loss in accordance with
IFRS 9, The calculation with the greater provision was considered in stages 2 and 3, and the
material impact of the application has been recorded on the condensed consolidated financial
statements as at 31 December 2018.

Standards Issued But Not Yet Effective

IFRS 16 Leases
During January 20186, the IASB issued IFRS (16) “Leases” which sets out the principles for the
recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases.

IFRS (16) substantially carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in 1AS (17).
Accordingly, IFRS (16) introduced a single lessee accounting model and requires a lessee to
recognize assets and liabilities for all leases with a term of more than 12 months, unless the
underlying asset is of low value. A lessee is required to recognize a right-of-use asset
representing its right to use the underlying leased asset and a lease liability representing its
obligation to make lease payments.

The new standard will be effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019. Early
application is permitted.

Transition to IFRS (16)

The Bank has the option to adopt IFRS (16) retrospectively and restate each prior reporting period
presented or using the modified retrospective approach by applying the impact as an adjustment
on the opening retained earnings. The Bank will elect to apply the standard to contracts that were
previously identified as leases applying IAS (17) and IFRIC (4).

The Bank will adopt IFRS (16) using the madified retrospective approach. During 2018.

The standard implemintation mechanism will be reviewed for IFRS (186), taking into consideration
related Central Bank of Jordan instructions.

(70) Comparative figures

Some of the 2017 figures were reclassified to correspond with period ended 31 December 2018
presentation with no effect on equity or income for the year 2017.
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